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ORDERS OF REFERENCE

MonDAY, January 12, 1953.

Resolved,——THat the following Members do compose the Standing Com-
mittee on External Affairs:—

Messrs.

~ Bater, Fraser, : ' MacDougall,

Benidickson, Fulford, Maclnnis,
Bennett, Gauthier (Lac-Saint- MacKenzie,
Bradette, Jean), Macnaughton,
Coldwell, - Gauthier (Portneuf), McCusker,
Coté (Matapedia- Goode, Picard,

Matane), Graydon, j Pinard,

- Croll, Green, Quelch, 5
Decore, : Higgins, Richard (Ottawa East),
Diefenbaker, - Jutras, Riley, :

Fleming, Kirk (Digby-Yarmouth), Robichaud,
Fournier (Maisonneuve- Lesage, -Stick—35.

Rosemont), Low,

Ordered,—That the Standing Committee on External Affairs be empowered
to examine and inquire into all such matters and things as may be referred to
them by the House; and to report from time to time their observations and
opinions thereon, with power to send for persons, papers and records.

TUESDAY, February 17, 1953.

Ordered,—That Items Nos. 85 to 104 inclusive of the Main Estimates 1953-54
be withdrawn from the Committee of Supply and referred to the said Com-

' mittee, saving always the powers of the Committee of Supply in relation to the

voting of public moneys.

THURSDAY, February 19, 1953.

Ordered,—That the said Committee be empowered to print from day to
day, 650 copies in English and 250 copies in French of its Minutes of Proceedings
and Evidence and that-Standing Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto.

Ordered,—That the said Committee be granted leave to sit while the
House is sitting.

Ordered,—That the quorum of the said Committee be reduced from 10 to 8
Members, and that Standing Order 63(1) (L) be suspended in relation thereto.

Attest.

LEON J. RAYMOND,
Clerk of the House.

71683--13
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REPORT TO THE HOUSE
THURSDAY, February 19, 1953.
The Standing Committee on External Affairs begs leave to present the
following as its
FIRST REPORT
Your Committee recommends:

1. That it be empowered to print from day to day, 650 copies in English
and 250 copies in French of its Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence and that
Standing Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto.

2. That it be granted leave to sit while the House is sitting.
3. That its quorum be reduced from 10 to 8 Members, and that Standing
Order 63 (1) (L) be suspended in relation thereto.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

J. A. BRADETTE,
Chairman.



MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
THURSDAY, February 19, 1953.

The Standing Committee on External Affairs met at 11.00 o’clock a.m.
this day. The Chairman, Mr. J. A. Bradette, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Bater, Bennett, Bradette, Decore, Diefenbaker,
Fraser, Fulford, Gauthier (Lac St. Jean), Gauthier (Portneuf), Goode, Graydon,
Green, Kirk (Digby-Yarmouth), Low, MacDougall, MacInnis, Macnaughton,
Picard, Pinard, Quelch, Richard (Ottawa East), Riley, Robichaud.

Copies of a detailed statement of current and proposed Departmental
expenditures were tabled and distributed to members of the Committee.

The Chairman informed the Committee that the Secretary of State for
External Affairs would be in attendance at the meeting this afternoon.

On motion of Mr. Goode,
Resolved,—That Mr. Gordon Graydon be Vice-Chairman of the Committee.

On motion of Mr. Kirk (Digby-Yarmouth),

Resolved,—That a recommendation be made to the House to reduce the
quorum from 10 to 8 members.

On motion of Mr. Fraser,

Resolved,—That permission be sought to print, from day to day, 650 copies
in English and 250 copies in French of the Committee’s Minutes of Proceedings
and Evidence.

On motion of Mr. MacDougall,

Resolved,—That the Committee request permission to sit while the House
is sitting.

On motion of Mr. Goode,

- Resolved,—That a sub-committee on Agenda and Procedure, comprising the
Chairman and 8 members to be named by him, be appointed.

On motion of Mr. Fulford,
Resolved,—That the Committee meet on Monday, February 23, at an hour
to be designated by the Chairman. .

At 11.30 o’clock a.m. the Committee’ adjourned until 3.30 o’clock p.m. this
day. :

AFTERNOON SITTING

The Committee resumed at 3.30 o’clock p.m. The Chairman, Mr. J. A.
Bradette, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Bater, Bennett, Bradette, Croll, Decore, Fulford,
Gauthier (Lac St. Jean), Gauthier (Portneuf), Goode, Graydon, Green, Jutras,
.Kirk (Digby-Yarmouth), Lesage, Low, MacDougall, Maclnnis, MacKenzie,
Macnaughton, Pinard, Quelch, Riley, Robichaud.
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In attendance: Honourable L. B. Pearson, Secretary of State for External
Affairs; Mr. L. D. Wilgress, Under-Secretary of State for External Affairs; Mr.
R. M. Macdonnell, Assistant Under-Secretary of State for External Affairs and

Mr. J. R. Barker, Executive Assistant to the Under-Secretary of' State for
External Affairs.

The Chairman welcomed Mr. Pearson who, in turn, introduced Messrs.
Wilgress and Macdonnell.

Item No. 85 of the Departmental estimates was called.

Mr. Pearson answered various questions put by Committee members
concerning world affairs, special attention being paid to the work .of the
International Service of the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation.

The Chairman announced that the following members had been chosen
to serve with him on the Sub-Committee on Agenda and Procedure: Messrs.
Coldwell, Coté (Matapedia-Matane), Decore, Graydon, Jutras, Lesage, Quelch,
Riley.

At 4.45 p.m., the Commlttee adjourned until 11.00 oclock a.m., Monday,
February 23

MonbpAY, February 23, 1953.

The Standing Committee on External Affairs met at 11.00 o’clock a.m.
this day. The Chairman, Mr. J. A. Bradette, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Bater, Benidickson, Bennett, Bradette, Coté
(Matapedia-Matane), Croll, Decore, Gauthier (Portneuf), Goode, Graydon,
Green, Jutras, Kirk (Digby-Yarmouth), Lesage, Low, MacDougall, MacInnis,
McCusker, Quelch, Richard (Ottawa East), Riley, Stick.

In attendance: From the Department of External Affairs: Mr. L. D.
Wilgress, Under-Secretary, Mr. R. M. Macdonnell, Asst. Under-Secretary, Mr.

S. D. Hemsley, Finance Division and Mr. J. R. Barker, Exec. Asst. to the Under-
Secretary.

The Chairman mentioned that Mr. Tom Goode, M.P., a member of the com-
mittee, is leaving soon for New York to attend the commg meetmg of the
United Nations General Assembly.

A letter from the Canadian Peace Congress, requesting a hearing before
this Committee, was read into the record by the Chairman.

After discussion, on motion of Mr. Goode,

Resolved,—That the Canadian Peace Congress be not heard by the stand-
ing Committee on External Affairs.

Item No. 85—Main Fstlmates of the Department of External Affairs—was
again considered.

Mr. Wilgress was called, made a general statement and was questioned on
departmental matters.

At 12.30 o’clock p.m., the Committee adjourned until Thursday, February
26, at 11.00 o’clock a.m.

E. W. INNES,
Clerk of the Committee.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House oFr COMMONS, -
FEBRUARY 19, 1953.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I shall now call the meeting to order. I
notified you this morning that we would have the Minister at this, our first
official meeting. He has to leave at 5.30 for New York. I believe it would
be in order to say that we are very fortunate in being able to kéep ocur worthy
secretary for our work this year. We have two new reporters with us, so it

.might be in order when we speak, at the early meetings at least, to mention

our names. ;

The first procedure will be to, call item No. 85 in the Book of Estimates,
at page 13, the departmental administration. Shall the item carry?

I shall now ask the Hon. Mr. Pearson to speak to the committee, but
before he does so, I should also say that we have with us Mr. Dana Wilgress,
and that he too is heartily welcome.

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: Mr. Chairman, and members of the committee, I
would also like to introduce to you Mr. Macdonnell one of our Assistant Under °
Secretaries of State. I hope it will meet the wishes of the committee if I do
not attempt to make a speech. I have done a lot of speech making on External
Affairs in the last few days and I have nothing in a general way to add to
what I have said in the house. But I might be of some use to the committee
in trying, with the help of my colleagues from the department, to answer any
particular questions which might occur to you. I would prefer it if the com-
mittee agreed to proceed in that way, rather than to try to make a general
statement which would not really add to all the general statements I have
been making lately. There may be some special questions you would like
to bring up before I have to leave, and it may also be the desire of the
committee to hear from me again when I return.

I shall be coming back, I hope, in a fortnight or so for two or three days
because the General Assembly which opens early next week will, according
to its present plans, merely establish one committee, the political committee,
to which the remaining subjects will be allotted except those which will have
to be dealt with in plenary; and as there will be only one committee func-
tioning, or at the most, two, I may not have to spend all my time in New York.
In that case I should be back in a fortnight for two or three days at which
time I could appear again before this committee.

The CHAIRMAN: I believe that would be satisfactory. Is it agreed?
Agreed.

Mr. Low: There is one question I would like to have clarified by the
minister arising out of something he said when he was speaking in the House
on February 17. I take it that our committee could get clarification on things
which have to do with international affairs?

The CHAIRMAN: That is correct.
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Mr. Low: I ask.for the purpose of getting it straight in my own mind:
just where the United States command ends and the United Nations’ command
begins? I think I shall just quote what the minister said and ask him to make
it a little clearer to us. This is what Mr. Pearson said: *

Just to keep the record straight on this, because these are very
important matters and what we say in respect of them will go far beyond
these four walls, may I say that at that time the Far Eastern command
was the Far Eastern command of the United States under generals who
were senior to General Van Fleet. The Far Eastern command in turn
got its directions from the unified command, which was the chiefs of
staff in Washington. So any military action which was taken at that
time or not taken at that time was in accordance with the orders of the
supreme military direction of that operation, which was in Washington
and under General Bradley.

I wonder if the minister could make clear to us just where the United
States authority ends and where the United Nations authority begins in the
direction of military efforts in the name of the United Nations?

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Low, what page are you quoting from?
Mr. Low: I was quoting from page 2004 of Hansard, Mr. Chairman.

Hon. Mr. PearsoN: I think I can clear that up. The United Nations in a
resolution asked the United States government to nominate a unified com-
mand to be responsible for the conduct of military operations in Korea within
the ambit of the resolutions passed by the United Nations. The United States
President, acting on this invitation, designated the United States Chiefs of
Staff as the unified command of the United Nations in Korea. That means that
the superior direction for the United Nations of military operations in Korea
is vested in the United States Chiefs of Staff, and we call it the unified
command.

Mr. Low: Of what? '

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: Of the United Nations.

Mr. Low: Of the United Nations?

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: The unified command of the United Nations, by invita-
tion of the United Nations, is the United States Chiefs of Staff.

Mr. Low: When are they designated as the American Chiefs of Staff and
when are they designated as the unified command?

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: There is no distinction in so far as their responsibility
under the United Nations is concerned. The United States Chiefs of Staff have
a lot of other things to do of course which are not necessarily concerned with the
United Nations; but when they are acting in the control and conduct of military
operations in Korea, military operations which are consequent upon United
Nations resolutions, then they are the unified command of the United Nations,
and the United States general commanding in Korea is an agent of the United
States Chiefs of Staff who are the unified command. They have two hats, a hat
for the unified command, and a hat for the United States Chiefs of Staff.

Mr. Low: When would it be correct to refer to them as United Nations
officials and when not? Or would it be correct at any time?

Hon. Mr. PEarsoN: No. I was taking issue on this: when you talk about
United Nations officials ordering or preventing General MacArthur from bomb-
ing Manchuria, the statement may lead to confusion. The United Nations
officials as we understand them as it is understood I think pretty clearly in
New York, are officials of the United Nations Secretariat. .

Mr. Low: I understand that.
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Hon. Mr. PEARsON: I thought you were suggesting that the United Nations
as such, through its officials, had intervened in the conduct of military operations.
General MacArthur took his military direction from the unified command who
were the United States Chiefs of Staff.

Mr. Low: Actually what I had in mind was the unified command and I
wanted to be quite sure about it. I may have made a slip in the use of the term
United Nations officials in referring to them, but that is what I wanted to get .
straight. ,

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: I think it would have been understood in New York at
the United Nations, by anybody who read that statement of yours, that United
Nations officials meant the Secretary-General of the United Nations and his
officials, and they certainly had nothing whatever to do with it.

Mr. Low: I had in mind what you described as the unified command.

Mr. QUELCH: Does the unified command take the part of the military staff
committee?

Hon. Mr. PEARsON: No. The military staff committee is a permanent agency
of the United Nations. The unified command was set up to direct only this
particular operation.

Mr. QueLcH: Would they take their orders from the military committee?

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: No, they would not.

Mr. QuercH: Would they take their orders direct from the Security
Council?

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: No. The unified command are bound by United Nations
resolutions on Korea, but in their military direction of the campaign they do not
take their orders from anybody as long as they are operating, militarily, within
the resolutions that we have passed at the United Nations.

Mr. QuELcH: Under the resolution passed in October 1950 the unified com-
mand has the right to carry out their military operations anywhere within
Korea?

Hon. Mr. PeEARsoN: That is right; and a good example of the relationship:
was the decision taken by the General Assembly two or three years ago, to cross
the 38th parallel. Before the United Nations forces actually did so, a resolution
was passed at Lake Success authorizing them to proceed beyond that parallel
and operate in Northern Korea.

Mr. QUELCH: They would not have the power to bomb Manchurian air bases?

Hon. Mr. PEArRsSON: That is a difficult question to answer categorically and
I must be very careful about what I say. They would have no power to extend
operations beyond Korea, I think, with this exception: if a question, for instance,
of hot pursuit should arise, if there were a massive air attack from Manchuria
on our forces—the United Nations forces in Korea—and the unified command,
or the general in command—not in 'Washington but in Korea—felt that for the
safety of his troops it was necessary to prevent such bombing and to pursue
those bombers over the border and_ attack them—in other words, if it was a
question concerning the immediate safety of his troops—I think it would be
considered that he had that authority under the existing resolution. But he
certainly would not have the authority to take any action which would extend,
generally, operations beyond Korea.

Mr. QueELcH: Would that be in the resolution passed in 1950 or some other
resolution?
Hon. Mr. PEarsoN: No, it would not be that resolution. It would be the

United Nations resolutions giving the unified command responsibility for the
conduct of military operations in Korea.
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Mr. GReeN: The authority under which the unified command is working at
- the present time is wide enough to enable them to conduct operations anywhere
in Korea, either south or north?

Hon. Mr. PeArRson: Their authority is wide enough to permit them to go
right up to the north if military considerations made it desirable, but I would
not be telling you the whole story unless I added that when any extension of
military operations in a big way in Korea is planned by the unified command, an
~extension—even in Korea—which might have political consequences, it is now
customary for those governments who have forces in Korea to consult together
and to be informed by the United States government, which, of course, is the
government in control of the unified command. I do not want to say anything
which would interfere with military_security or be politically embarrassing to
anybody, but it is now understood that if there is an extension of present
military operations, even though it might be authorized within existing United
Nations resolutions, if there was, for instance a mass offensive to the north
borders, it is now understood there will be discussion of that sort of plan among
the governments concerned.

Mr. GrREEN: That is, only with the nations which have troops there.

Hon. Mr. PEarsoN: Yes, among the governments who have troops in
Korea, because their troops would be involved. We meet now with the repre-
sentatives of those governments, in Washington, to discuss the situation.

Mr. GReeN: Do they meet with the chiefs of staff?

Hon. Mr. PearsoN: They meet with the representative of the chiefs of
staff. I think there have been occasions when one of the chiefs of staff has
attended, but normally there is a special representative or more than one repre-
sentative of the chiefs of staff who attend the meeting.

Mr. QueLcH: Has the resolution which was passed in October 1950 been
altered or is unification of Korea still the over-all objective?

Hon. Mr. PEarsoN: That is the over-all political objective.

Mr. BATER: Is the unified command made up entirely of American person-
nel, or are there officers of Britain and Canada acting on it?

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: No, the unified command is the United States chiefs
of staff and their officers, but about a year ago, I think it was, the United King-
dom appointed General Shoosmith, who was here on his way to Korea, to be
deputy chief of staff at the United Nations command headquarters. I think
he is the only high officer of any other country on that body.

Mr. QUELcH: How has article 47 been observed in this matter? Under that
there should have been chiefs of staff of the members of the Security Council
on the military committee.

Hon. Mr. PeEarsonN: The reason why it was set aside is ‘that the permanent
military commission of the United Nations included the Russians. It was not
realistic to ask them to participate in the control of military operations in
Korea, so that agency just could not be used. That is the way it should be done
in theory, but not on this occasion.

- Mr. Graypon: I guess the Russians would have participated, but the others
kept them out!

The CHAIRMAN: Have you completed your questioning, Mr. Quelch.

Mr. MacInnis: Could I follow up Mr. Quelch’s questions in regard to a
unified Korea. Personally, I doubt very much if that was ever a realistic
approach. What do ycu think about that?

Hon. Mr. PearsoN: You have to put the position as it seemed two or three
years ago, when we passed this resolution; it would have been very difficult
for the United Nations not to have recognized the ulitimate goal of a free, demo-
cratic and unified Korea at that time, and, indeed, very difficult for the United
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- Nations not fd mé.ke that its ulimate political objei:tive now. But Canada is not
_under any obligation, nor is any other member of the United Nations, to achieve

that objective by force. We are under an obligation to retaliate against and to
defeat aggression. You might say that that means driving the aggressor back
where he came from, and that has been substantially done, but the ultimate
objective of a free, democratic and unified Korea remains, and the achievement
of that objective is not going to be easy.

Mr. QUELCcH: Does the resolution not infer that the military forces will
be maintained in Korea until that objective is reached? Section D reads:

United Nations forces should not remain in any part of Korea
otherwise than as far as necessary for achieving the objectives specified
in subparagraphs (a) and (b).

Hon. Mr. PEArRsON: That was put in to make sure that, once Korea was,
united, no one power would have undue influence in the freed and united
Korea by keeping its forces there. It was put in almost for the opposite purpose
than the one you mentioned, to make sure that Korea would be free and that
when it became free and united again, all foreign forces would withdraw.

The CHAIRMAN: Have you finished your questioning, Mr. Quelch?

Mr. QueLcH: Yes; although I think that inference is also there.

Mr. MacInNis: Don’t you think, Mr. Pearson, that the ideal of a united
Korea militates against a realistic program of making South Korea strong
enough to prevent North Korean agression, and then that the idea should be
to build up a strong southern Korea?

Hon. Mr. PEArRsON: That may be, Mr. Maclnnis, but we are more and more
relying on the South Korean army to defeat this aggression. At the present
time there are, I think, about twelve South Korean divisions in action. Now,
it would not be of much encouragement to South Koreans in the task they are
facing, and the increasing burden which they are bearing, if they were told
that there is not much chance of unifying their own country. Furthermore
a lot of the Koreans fighting in the South Korean divisions come from North
Korea. It would be discouraging for them to be told that by the rest of us.

Mr. Low: Especially with the whole of the communist world behind the
north.

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: There is a problem there of Korean morale.

Mr. Goopg:y Mr. Chairman, this question may be elementary to Mr. Pearson,
but to me it is not. He has said that there was a resolution of the United
Nations appointing .the unified command for action in Korea. Is it confined
normally to Korea? If any action was necessary in Europe, would another
resolution be askea?

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: This resolution has no effect on anything but the
defeat of aggression in Korea. .

Mr. MacDoucALL: I want again to hearken back to the old subject, this
question of Korea. Away back in 1894 and 1896 there was quite a battle in
the British House of Lords between- Lord Rendall and Lord Roseberry as to
who was going to have suzerainty over Korea, and one favoured China and
the other favoured Japan. I guess my earlier education was badly neglected,
because I do not ever recall at school learning anything about Korea, which
at that time was Corea. However, be that as it may, I am trying to bring about
verification, or a statement by the minister—I do not know whether you would
make it or not, Mr. Minister, but as long as this situation with respect to Korea
continues to exist, and with the terrific drain on taxation on the free world,
does the minister think that that can continue, we will say for years, without
a general economic and financial breakdown of what might be termed the free
nations of the North American continent particularly. Then, again, on the other
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hand, if that is not plausible, I think it is fair to admit that we are in no better
position, if not n a worse position than we were two years ago in Korea. Getting
back to that aspect of that and repeating the sentiments expressed by General
Van Fleet not so many days ago that the agression in Korea, in his opinion,
would have to be finally stopped by a real attack on the aggressor, and that by
initiating this real attack on the aggressor it still would not in any wise bring
Stalin into the picture.

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: That is quite a question! On the first part of it, the
economic burden on the free world of maintaining military operations in Korea
indefinitely, I would only say that at the present time in Korea there are,
I think, about seven United States divisions. There is also one Commonwealth
division. The United States divisions include contingents from other countries
and indeed Korean volunteers. Now you can judge for yourself whether the
United States could maintain this force in Korea for some time, in those cir-
cumstances, without having any fatal effect on its economy. I am not suggesting
that it is a desirable thing to do, but economically I would hate to think it was
not possible. The intention, of course, is to build up Korean strength to a point
where the Koreans will assume an even greater share of the battle than they
do now, so from that points of view the economic burden is not unbearable.

The other question is a matter of opinion, whether it would be desirable
to mount an offensive in an effort to drive the aggressors back to the Yalu
river. General Van Fleet has only been reported in the press on this, and I
think it would be well to wait until he is before the congressional committee
in Washington to see what he has to say officially, but even he made it quite
clear that this should not be done without greater military strength than the
United Nations now possess out there. The problem, from the point of view
of global strategy is not only whether an attack of that kind would invite a
counter attack, because all the Chinese forces are not yet engaged in Korea.
That is just one consideration. The other consideration is whether it would be
desirable to reinforce the Korean front to such an extent at the expense of
other places.

Mr. Decore: Mr. Chairman, the minister the other day made some passing
reference to psychological warfare. He did not dwell on it very much, and I
wonder if the minister would care to elaborate now on just what the goverment’s
policy is in connection with psychological warfare, if there is a poliey, and
just how far we would be prepared to go with it at the present time.

Hon. Mr. PearsonN: That is a very difficult question for me or anybody
to answer. After all, Canada is only one member of this coalition and not by
any means the strongest or most important member and psychological warfare,
which is an important aspect of the conflict in which we are unhappily engaged,
would have to be the fesponsibility mainly of the major members of the
coalition. I am thinking of the United States, the United Kingdom and France.
They do participate in this kind of warfare. I do not like to use the word
“warfare” in this connection, but they do attempt to bring the truth to the
people behind the iron curtain by various methods notably, of course, broad-
casting. It is important to coordinate these activities so that we all say the
same thing, or if perhaps not precisely the same thing, that we follow the
same principles. Canada does play a part through the C.B.C.I.S. and for the
purpose we keep in very close touch with the Voice of America and the B.B.C.
shortwave service, so that we do not contradict each other and so that what
we do in this field dovetails into a general scheme of propaganda. You will
have, Mr. Chairman, an opportunity to discuss the C.B.C.L.S. in detail. I gather
that those concerned with its direction will appear before you.
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As regards the other question, it is a very tricky business to conduct
psychological warfare in a time of cold war and through the agency of a
coalition of free states I just hinted at this difficulty the other night in the
House when I quoted from a commentator who said that we disagreed among
ourselves in many respects and were bound to do so because every country
had its own voice; and that it was notable that there was some confusion of ideas
even in our own minds, which was one way of confusing the enemy!

Mr. MacDoucALL: Confusion worse confounded.

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: But there is another difficulty and that is to avoid
raising, through psychological propaganda and among the many who are
slaves behind the iron curtain, hopes that cannot be immediately realized.
A lot of people worry about this. There is a great deal of talk about liberation.
What people want is to give encouragement to those behind the iron curtain
who are as anti-communist as we are, possibly more so because they are living
under the communists, and to make them feel that they have not been forgotten
and that we are going to try to help them. That is one thing. But to give
them that feeling to the point where they expect military liberation is surely
very dangerous.

In the last war when some of these people, under the rule of the Nazis,
listened to clandestine broadcasts in cellars and dugouts and gathered around
the B.B.C. it was possible to talk like that because we were actually fighting
militarily to liberate them and they knew the time would come when they
could bring their radios into the open. But, if we were to say the same thing
to the people of the ‘iron curtain countries today we might be doing them
more harm than good by inviting even greater repression and retaliation on
the part of their communist masters.

Mr. GRAYDON: To follow up that question involving methods, what do we
offer them and what do we say as far as the international service is concerned?
Is your department the boss of what goes on and what is beamed to other
countries, or is Mr. McCann, or the Prime Minister, or is it a combination, or
what is the situation?

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: As you know, the C.B.CI.S. is a part of the C.B.C.
which comes under the jurisdiction, not of the Department of External Affairs,
but of the Department of National Revenue.

Mr. GRAYDON: Is Jean Désy, the director of C.B.C.1.S., paid a salary?

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: He continues to draw his salary from the Department
of External Affairs because we have seconded him to C.B.C.I.S. However,
his predecessor who was not seconded but who was a regular member of the
C.B.C.I.S. staff was paid by the C.B.C. Mr. Désy continues to draw his external
affairs salary and he gets an allowance from the C.B.C.I.S. He is in charge of
the administration and executive policy of the C.B.C.I.S. and in carrying out
that duty he gets policy guidance from the Department of External Affairs.
We have one man who devotes all his time to that.

Mr. GRAYDON: Who is he?

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: We have an officer in Montreal, Yvon Beaulne. He
is also seconded to the C.B.C.I.S. for the purpose of giving advice and he is
in continual touch with the department. We can see the texts of their broad-
casts, we discuss the broadcasts with them, and they also check their own
broadcasts, after they are cleared with us, with broadcasts from New York
and London. Mr. Désy has been in New York more than once discussing
with the Voice of America the line they follow and that kind of thing. So
there is very close coordination. I hope you will be able to go into this in
some detail with the officials concerned.

Mr. GRAYDON: In other words Désy is responsible still to you?
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Hon. Mr. PEARSON: No, he is not responsible to us.
Mr. GrRAYDON: Should he not be?
Hon. Mr. PEARSON: That is arguable.

Mr. GRAYDON: After all, the policy of this country in so far as outside
places are concerned rests with the Department of External Affairs. Why
should officials of the C.B.C.I.S., whether seconded or not, be the ones left
with the responsibility for that? When you speak about the execution of policy
it would seem to me that just having somebody that I have never heard of
before, although he might be a very important person in Montreal, discussing
this thing with Jean Désy who is not now with Yhe external affairs depart-
ment—it seems to me to be a pretty loose way of handling something of
tremendous value:

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: That is the way it is handled in other countries like
the United Kingdom and the United States where broadcasts of this kind are
on a more extensive scale. The foreign office in London do not control the
B.B.C. shortwave service but they work very closely with it as we do with the
C.B.C.L.S. It may be that the committee in considering this matter will decide
there should be some other method. We have found that from our point of
view this arrangement works pretty well. For instance, every month or so
I get a great stack of texts of broadcasts to countries behind the iron curtain
(the only ones you are concerned with in this connection) and I try to see
the line being followed and to satisfy myself it is the right line.

Mr. GRAYDON: Does the cabinet ever give consideration in a pretty general
way to this matter or is it all just by yourself?

Hon. Mr. PEArRsON: We do not discuss C.B.C.I.S. matters in cabinet—espe-
cially when the C.B.C. ask for more money.

Mr. MacInNis: What happens when you do not see eye to eye with these
broadcasts?

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: I would discuss with Mr. Désy the line, or trend and
tone and slant; I would not do that of course on my own. We have men in
our divisions who have been in Warsaw, Prague and Moscow and who have
some knowledge of the people in these countries, and they are in a position
to follow these broadcasts very carefully. The men the C.B.C.I.S. have in
Montreal act as a channel for the expression of these views.

Mr. GraypoN: May I ask you to answer the question I asked you. What
do you say in a general way to these people behind the iron curtain? What
do we hold out to them? Is it containment, liberation, or what is it?

Hon. Mr. PEArRsON: No, we try to give them a picture of our free way of
life and to emphasize its superiority over the life of the regime under which
they have to live. We also, on occasion, try to show up the absurdity and
falsehood of the things which they are getting in their newspapers, in their
magazines and on their broadcasts. We have a steady stream of information
coming back to us from these countries and we give them convincing evidence
of the falsehood and absurdity of some of the things they are being told.
But, we do not normally appeal directly to their desire to free themselves
because that would not be doing them a favour at this stage. I would like to
suggest, Mr. Chairman, that it might be of interest to members of the com-
mittee if you had a written report on this matter from which a discussion
could proceed. We would be glad to give you such a report:

Mr. MacDouGaLL: On that very subject, Mr. Chairman, is there a para-
mount desire in these countries to eventually be what we might term
democratized? Take the U.S. government which today is spending quite a
number of millions of dollars in trying to bring democracy to the Micronesian
Islands.
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Mr. CroLL: Where is that?

Mr. MacDouGALL: It is one of the main islands. And evidently in spite of
the money being spent there as far as the Micronesians are concerned they do
not give a hoot about being democratized. They would like to be left alone.
Are we wandering into the same thing in any of the other countries?

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: We were talking just now about countries behind the
iron curtain. We do other forms of broadcasting. We broadcast to Latin
America and to other friendly countries. But, confining my remarks to
broadcasts directly behind the iron curtain, the people concerned are
not Micronesians! The Czechoslovaks, for example, are freedom-loving
people, and, whatever their form of government may be at the present
time, they built up after the first war one of the most enlightened and
progressive democracies in Europe. Now, these people have not changed
in the last four or five years and we are not converting them to anything. We
want to see them restored to freedom, rather than converted to it. They do
not need conversion.. The same is true of Poland. It was governing itself as a
political democracy until the communists took over, and even in Russia there
was the beginning of democracy when the communists took over in 1917.

Mr. DEcoRE: You made references to Poland. Is there any possibility of
Pohsh broadcast?

Hon. Mr:. PEARSON: That matter is under consideration now—whether we
could extend the broadecasts to Poland if we had the funds.

Mr. GRAYDON: Is any co-ordinating body making any attempt at attaining
unity of broadcasts between the Voice of America and the B.B.C.? The
reason why I am asking is that the information I have is that the Voice of
the B.B.C. and the Voice of America do not always follow anything like the
same line and when the minister speaks about our voice here in the C.B.C.L.S.
following these two it would be difficult if we tried to follow both of them.
I was wondering if thére was any move by Canada to form some co-ordinating
committee whereby the B.B.C., the C.B.C.I.S. and the Voice of America would
come to some unified policy as to what we should tell them behind the iron
curtain. I am not quite certain. While the minister speaks about confusion
in the minds of those who direct policies from the Kremlin, there must be
great confusion over the fact that we do not always agree on what we want
in the way of what kind of free world we have in mind, and I was wondering
if anything had been done about that.

Hon. Mr. PeArRsON: That should be covered in the report I mentioned. I
think it would be useful if the detail in that regard were laid out. But I can
say there is a very close liaison between New York, London and Paris, and Mr.
Macdonnell has just come back from a conference in Paris under NATO
auspices where they tried to work out policies; but I think it would be unreal-
istic to set up at this time one controlling authority because the NATO countries
are free countries and they have their different approaches to broadcasting and
to information and propaganda. The main thing is to make sure that we know
each other’s policies and to try to work in with each other’s policies; but central-
ized control I think would be impractical.

Mr. GrRAYDON: I could not agree with the minister more. I do not think
anyone here would want to advocate that, but T would think that there would

be great advantages in having some kind of a course that would to some extent
In any event iron out some of the kinks that are in the thing now.

Hon. Mr. PEarsoN: We talked about this in NATO and we are hoping that
NATO can be used more in the future than in the past, without attempting any
sort of central authority to make sure our ideas do not conflict.
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Mr. Low: The minister spoke of communicating with the countries behind
the Iron Curtain. Is it in any way clear that the people are maintaining their
desire to be free or is that declining? :

Hon. Mr. PEARsON: I would have to be pretty careful in answering or
attempting to answer that question, Mr. Chairman. There is no reason to
believe—Mr. Macdonnell was stationed in Prague for some time and knows
more about this than I do—that the people of Czechoslovakia, for example,
have lost the desire for freedom at all. But, of course, as the years pass the
regime becomes more and more firmly established with its repressive machinery
and its education of the children. :

Mr. Low: I was thinking of Bulgaria particularly in that respect.

Hon. Mr.”PEARSON: I would not like to think that any of these countries
have lost the desire for freedom. But in some of them, especially the USSR,
I doubt if they have ever known freedom as we understand it. The regime
in the USSR, whatever it may have done to the people, has not failed to con-
vince millions of them that they are better off than they were under the czars.

Mr. QueLcH: I take it these broadcasts are to show these people beyond
the Iron Curtain that the life of the free nations is better than the life they
have and that they have the right of a free future and in view of the fact that
they have not this right now the only way they can get it is by revolt. What I
want to follow up is: is there any reason for them to believe that if they take
action they will gain any support from the free world—and they get that
idea from some of the Americans—and as you have pointed out they are not
speaking with any official understanding—but what have they a right to
believe will be our action if they fight against the present form of government.

Hon. Mr. PEaRSON: There again I will have to be pretty careful in what I
say. My own view is that to broadcast for the purpose of encouraging people
now under communist dictatorship to revolt—to make that a policy of our own
broadcasting—would be doing no good and might lead to tragedy and
catastrophe.

Mr. GrRaypoN: We could change the opinions of the leaders.

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: We are trying to get across to these people the fact that
our way of life is better and we hope ‘that this may have some effect on their
own feelings and possibly eventually on their own actions, but we must not
give them the impression that any action they might take at this time would
be assisted by men and machines moving across the border of their country.
Also when we talk about freedom to Russian listeners we have got to be care-
ful that we are not talking about something they do not understand and
possibly may never understand. Possibly they do not want our type of free-
dom. The Russians, from a study of their philosophy and history, do not
necessarily feel that the type of political democracy of the western world
should be for them, but if you study their history you will also find that every
fifty or sixty or seventy years there has been some change in their attitude
towards whatever regime they have.

Mr. DEcoRrg: Is it the Russians we are concerned about or the minorities
within Soviet Russia? ;

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: We broadcast to the USSR but the weakest point is on
the periphery.

Mr. GraypoN: Would you include the Ukraine in that?

Hon. Mr. PearsoN: The Ukrainians are a separate people as Mr. Decore
will tell you.
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Mr. GoobE: May I speak on perhaps a different angle? We talk about this
‘theoretical and psychological offensive—Mr. Pearson does not like the word
warfare. What are we doing in a practical way in, let us take Korea? It
seems the most important thing we can do there is to take care of our own.
We see pictures of orphans seated alongside the road and women walking
down the road, hundreds of thousands of them, with bundles on their back;
and what are we doing for those people? There seems to be a type of
psychological offensive we can use in a practical way if we can show these
people behind the Iron Curtain that we are taking care of our own people
on our own side with respect to these women and children in Korea.

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: A certain amount has been done. In fact if it had
not been for the United Nations relief and rehabilitation work there would
have been starvation and even greater tragedy in Korea. The United Nations
Korean relief agency has done a pretty good job in Korea. I forget what
the total contributions have been. Last year we subscribed $7,250,000 to it,
and I think it has spent altogether about $50 million. But, what it has spent
has meant the difference between life and death to a lot of people. The
unified command military relief has done much more than that. The U.S!.
military organization has spent great sums of money on relief, apart from
the United Nations relief itself. So I think some of the United Nations have not
defaulted in their responsibility in this respect, that is one element in our
propaganda warfare in Korea. We are trying to tell the North Korean how
the people are looked after in south Korea despite the devastation of war,
and how much worse their condition is in North Korea, which is true.

Mr. GraypoN: I don’t want to change the subject if there is anyone else
who has a question to ask. But I wanted to ask a question on another
matter now.

The CHAIRMAN: You have five more minutes with the minister.

Mr. Graypon: I fancy that the feeling of everybody on this committee
and in parliament, despite the various views that were expressed in connec-
tion with the policy in the far east in this debate—and there were plenty
of varying expressions of opinion, perhaps not as wide as one might have
expected, but there were some—I imagine that back of the whole thing is
a feeling that somehow the free powers ought to have some kind of effective
machinery for consultation on all these matters from one end of the globe
to the other. We have it in the North Atlantic alliance so far as the North
Atlantic union is concerned and I should welcome the same in connection with
matters in Korea. It seems to me the one prime matter of the free world
now is to have some effective machinery for co-operation of policy at high
levels—not low levels, but high levels—if we are going to be able to carry
public opinioh in all the various units of this free alliance. And it could be
done through the United Nations because it is comprised of not only free
powers but others that are not free. It could be done through the North
Atlantic alliance; but it does seem to me that somehow we will have to develop
a free power constructive system on a high level soon in order to keep our
whole free power objectives on a proper and even keel. I think that this
is going to be more and more emphasized. It has happened in the United
States and may happen in some other countries. I am concerned about that
problem and I know the minister must be because it is one of the things the
Canadian people have in the forefront of their minds now. They would like
to have a say in what is going on, no matter where it is all, over the world.
They may not hope to have the final say or a major say; it would depend
entirely upon what we are able to contribute and what our commitments
_would be; but I think it is important that everybody at least has a say through
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some machinery, that is effective and in which the public will have very great
confidence that they will not be lost in the rush. Is there any hope of that?

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: I think we ought to distinguish in our mind between
consultation itself in these matters, which is desirable—indeed it is essential—
and any central agency for continuous global consultation on the high political
level which may not be so easy. Mr. Graydon will recall that even during
the height of the war we had not such central agency for political consultation.
Mr. Roosevelt and Mr. Churchill met when it seemed desirable to meet; they
met quite often, but there was no continuing agency for consultation.

There was also the combined chiefs of staff for military consultation, with
which other countries were associated now, while it may be difficult to work
out that kind of central political consultative agency, the fact is that consulta-
tion is going on all the time also in the case of the North Atlantic Treaty
Organization we have an agency for consultation. We have, also as Mr. Graydon
pointed out, the Korean consultative committee in Washington, if you care to
call it that. But apart from these, I do not know of any major political
development that has occurred or that has been contemplated in the last two
or three years where we have not in some way been informed or consulted.

After all, we have our ordinary channels of diplomacy and that is what
they are for. I do not, for instance, have to rely only on this weekly committee in
Washington to find out what is likely to happen in Korea. We have our
Canadian Ambassador in touch with the State Department every day. We have
an understanding with other governments, such as the United States, that they
will tell us when they are going to initiate major policies. Occasionally they
forget to do so, but they are human and so are we. But there is a daily process
of consultation.

Similarly from our European missions we knew within a matter of hours
what Mr. Dulles was talking about on his recent visits to Paris, Bonn, and
London. We did not have to apply to any central agency. Mr. Davis for
instance is a pretty active person at Bonn and he found out what was said there
and the reports were on my desk almost within twenty-four hours; and the
same is true in respect of our heads of mission in Paris and London. And when
Mr. Dulles got back to Washington, our Ambassador got in touch with them
and I received a pretty good report of what they had talked about, from the
United States point of view. So, within the group of free countries, we have
pretty effective consultation.

Mr. GRAYDON: I am interested in what he says because that would seem
to indicate that the situation is in better shape than the public would be led
to believe was the case at times. Might I ask one thing. Does the minister
feel that the present system of consultation cannot be improved upon partic-
ularly, or that it is satisfactory as it stands?

Hon. Mr. PEArRsON: There is nothing that cannot be improved. Certainly
this can be improved, and as I have said, there are times when the existing
agencies of consultation do not function as effectively as they could. Very
often the government which is bearing the greatest part of the burden, the
United States government, feels that it must act very quickly and I would hate
to think that they could not act quickly in an emergency without first obtaining
the agreement of a dozen or so other countries. I would hate to think also
that they would not wish to consult us before they took any important action.

Once in a while we all slip up. We actually do things in Canada, I suppose,
about which we should tell others, but sometimes forget to do so.

Mr. CrorLL: I think the feeling of Canadians is somewhat different from
what Mr. Graydon has suggested. I think we feel that we have been consulted
out of all proportion to our importance; and from what I read about what goes
on in other countries, I am of the opinion that nothing happens which in any
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way affects the United States or Canada without our being consulted because
they want our opinions and our views. Perhaps they feel that we have opinions
and views that are worth having or perhaps they merely test them out on us;
but I do not think anything is done without our first being consulted.

I noticed that the Manchester Guardian and some of the other Common-
wealth countries were screaming about some of the American policies. But
I think they read about them after they received their slow mail, and that
somebody had forgotten to wire them. I can think of nothing of importance
that has gone on in the world within the time I have been in parliament here
upon which we have not been consulted and upon which we have made our
views known.

Mr. GRaYDON: May I say this to Mr. Croll: He may have partly misunder-
stood my objection. I was not referring particularly to Canada. We in Canada
are pretty close to the situation and perhaps our consultation machinery is a
little bit more perfect than some others. I was thinking of the free powers, and
I wondered if the thing could be improved.

Mr. CroLL: Was that not the question which Mr. Diefenbaker asked you
in the House today, about the United States, and you answered that the United
States was conferring with the free democracies?

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: We have had several meetings between countries which
have troops in Korea. But what Mr. Graydon said about the improvement of
existing machinery makes sense. We are not, any of us, satisfied for instance,
that we have worked out the best method of consultation within the North
Atlantic treaty organization.

Mr. GraypoN: I suppose you could say, with respect to this consultation
business, that nothing could be done; that you have to temper whatever you
do in the light of the knowledge of how practical it could be. But it does
seem to me that it is important to have public opinion in this country behind
what is being done.

Hon. Mr. PEARsSON: May I suggest one thing? In our concentration of
interest over new methods of consultation, over new international agencies to
be set up, we sometimes forget that we have an old and tried method of con-
sultation through the regular diplomatic services; and in fact I will go so far
as to say that in the long run it will prove to be the best form of consultation.
It is very important to have it supplemented by these other agencies, but it is
also important not to forget that while foreign ministers may go from con-
ference to conférence, we also have continuous diplomatic consultation and the
people who take part in that form of consultation are supposed to be experts
and to know their jobs. They usually do. Our best sources of information are
usually the messages which we get from our representatives abroad.

Mr. CroLL: Must the minister leave now?

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: I have another ten minutes:

Mr. CroLL: Mr. Chairman, I recall, when I was at the United Nations last
time, while we were there, someone from one of the other nations told me that
protocol demanded that the group, belonging to the country of the man who
was president, should visit the United Nations from time to time. Do you know
whether that is right or not?

The CHAIRMAN: I hope it is right.

Mr. CroLL: Well then, please do something about it.

Mr. GReeEN: Has any serious effort been made to get other members of the
United Nations to supply forces for Korea?

Hon. Mr. PEArRsON: They have all been approached, Mr. Green, more than
once by the United Nations. There are now more than 20 countries which have
made contributions of one kind or another. But I think there is a feeling in
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certain quarters that more might be done by some countries. It should also
be pointed out that the military authorities, from the military point of view,
find it a little difficult to fit small contingents from a variety of countries into the
military organization. I am not suggesting that it should not be done, but
there is that military problem. There are some contingents in Korea of 250 to
500 and less and it creates a bit of a problem for them. It would be much
easier, from a military point of view, if the minimum contribution were a
self-contained unit such as a brigade. But efforts have been made to circularize
the United Nations members to see if they are in a position to add to their
contributions. That is something which is under continual review down there.
The United States is, for obvious reasons, especially interested in that.

Mr. QuELcH: At the time the unified command was set up, was there any
~ understanding or assurance given that in the event of any change in policy,
that is, a change of policy within the terms of the United Nations resolution,
that the participating nations would be consulted first?

Hon. Mr. PEArRsoN: There has been an understanding from the beginning
that all the members of the United Nations who subscribed to the United
Nations resolutions have the right to be consulted. In fact, they must be con-
sulted on any general change of policy, because a resolution can only be amended
by another resolution, and it would have to go through the United Nations. But
apart from that, within the resolution, it is understood that there will be no
change made which would have major political consequences, or indeed major
military consequences without consulting those members which have forces
in Korea.

Mr. QueLcH: I asked the question because of continually reading about
protests being made by Britain to try to get a definite assurance that the forces
in Korea will not do this or that without their first being consulted.

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: That is true. We always talk a good deal about that
because it is something in which we are all interested.. There have been one
or two occasions where consultations have been inadequate; but by and large
I think the understanding to consult has been pretty well carried out by the
United States, which is the power with the greatest responsibility, and with
whom we all want to consult. There may not be the same eagerness on their
part to find out what we are doing!

Mr. MACKENZIE: Has Japan many troops in Korea?

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: Japan?

Mr. MACKENZIE: Yes.

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: No troops.

Mr. MAcKENZIE: None at all?

Hon. Mr. PeEarsoN: No. I think there are some Japanese civilians that
are engaged in some form of auxiliary activity, but there are no Japanese troops
in Korea.

Mr. QUELcH: Did Syngman Rhee protest against their use?

Hon. Mr. PEARsON: I am sure the present Korean administration would
not be very happy at the return of Japanese troops to Korea. They had
them there for a good many years. :

Mr. DEcorRe: Would the Japanese authorities favour Japanese troops in
Korea? X 3

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: Japan is now disarmed, and under the Japanese peace
treaty it is prevented from having troops. It is entitled to have security
police.

Mr. Low: Which of the South American republics have troops there?

Hon. Mr. Pearson: Colombia has a contingent of troops in Korea. The
Cubans, I think, sent some soldiers to Korea. v
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Mr. FuLForD: Santo Domingo have 5,000 troops there? Or are they just
talking about it? :

Hon. Mr. PeEArRsoN: I think I had better supply that information later
so I will not do anybody an injustice by overlooking any contribution. If
you will excuse me, Mr. Chairman, I should leave now.

Mr. GrRAYDON: Before the minister goes, may I suggest, Mr. Chairman,
that if he finds in his deliberations at the United Nations that there is anything
coming that looks like a change in his status, would he come right back here
while he is still a minister. We do not want to ask questions of the Secretary
General of the United Nations! :

Hon. Mr. PEARSON: I would like to have that question put on the order
paper where I could consider it as an order for return!

The CHAIRMAN: We thank you, Mr. Minister, and we wish you a very
good trip and a happy return.

Just a moment, gentlemen. I de not suppose you expect the committee
will hear from Mr. Wilgress this afternoon?

Mr. GRAYDON: No one would like to say no where Mr. Wilgress is involved.

The CHAIRMAN: Just one moment. I want the members to stay for just
a few minutes. There was a matter mentioned in Mr. Graydon’s speech, which
was a good speech, too—and I say that very sincerely—on the external affairs
debate. The first three items mentioned will, naturally, be referred to our
committee, but the fourth—the matter of the revision of the chapter of the
United Nations—I feel we should not tackle until we have fully completed our
work, and then we could give further thought to it. Will that be satisfactory?

Agreed.

Mr. MacInNis: I don’t think we should touch that till we change the rules
of the house. .

The CHAIRMAN: The subcommittee on agenda and procedure for 1953
is composed of the following: Messrs. Coldwell, Cote (Matapedia-Matane),
Decore, Graydon, Jutras, Quelch, Riley and myself.

Agreed.
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EVIDENCE

February 23, 1953.
11.00 a.m.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I want to praise you for coming here in such
good numbers. It looks as though it is a good idea to hold meetings on Monday
morning. 4

Before we proceed we are all pleased to see our friend Mr. Cote among
us again. We hope he is permanently recuperated. We are also pleased to learn
that our good friend Mr. Tom Goode is leaving this afternoon for the United
Nations as a member of the Canadian delegation and will of necessity be away
from our committee work for a few weeks.

Before Mr. Wilgress makes his presentation I believe it will be in order
for me to read this letter. It is-so important I shall leave it to the committee
to decide. It was written on February 14, 1953.

Mr. J. Omar Bradette, M.P.,

Chairman of Committee on External Affairs,
House of Commons,

Ottawa.

Dear Mr. Bradette:

On February 3, we wired you asking for an opportunity to appear
before the sommittee on External Affairs on the question of the conflict
in Korea. :

Increasing international tensions since that date and the serious
concern now being given in the House to Canada’s position seem to make
even more necessary the hearing of all proposals making for negotiation.

We would deeply appreciate hearing from you as to a date when
the committee will be able to meet with a small delegation from the
Canadian Peace Congress, to present a brief on the need for an immediate
“Cease-fire” in Korea, for prevention of any spread of the war, and for
negotiation of differences after the fighting has stopped.

You also are aware of the deep feeling in Canada with regard to
the danger of spreading the war and, we feel sure you will welcome the
presentation of our point of view on the question.

Sincerely yours,

(Sgd) Mary Jennison, Executive Secretary,
CANADIAN PEACE CONGRESS.

My answer was the following:
Ottawa, February 17, 1953.
Miss Mary Jennison,
Executive Secretary,
Canadian Peace Congress,
289A Church Street,
Toronto.

Dear Miss Jennison:

In reply to your letter of the 14th instant I beg to state that the
standing committee on' External Affairs has not yet started its activities
but I expect it will do so during the course of this week, and at our
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opening nieeting the ﬁrs-t item on the agenda will be your request to
appear before that committee and as soon as I have something definite
on this matter I shall immediately advise you.

Yours very truly,

(Sgd) J. A. Bradette, M.P.
for Cochrane, Ontario.

No doubt you know that the chairman of that committee is Dr. J. G.
Endicott.

Mr. GRAYDON: They are making their presentation to the wrong place;
they should be making their presentations to the Politburo.

The CHAIRMAN: What is your opinion? We will go by the majority decision
of the committee whether they will appear before this committee or not.

Mr. GoobE: As one individual member and speaking as one individual
member sitting on this committee I would refuse to see them.

Mr. GAUTHIER (Portneuf): I second that.

The CHAIRMAN: Moved and seconded. All those in favour?

Mr. Stick: What is the motion?

The CHAIRMAN: That they be not allowed to appear before the committee.

Mr. Cote: Will other people be invited before the committee?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes. It is always open. We had several delegations in
the past.

Mr. CoTE: Why not meet these people?

The CHAIRMAN: If you ask my comment you know how they would use
the privilege. They will use it purely and simply for communist propaganda.

Mr. CoTE: They were in the Senate committee last year. They have not
changed very much, but it may have some bearing upon the country.

The CHAIRMAN: The point is with those people solid arguments do not work.
Mr. GRAYDON: You have called for a vote have you not?
The CHAIRMAN: Not yet.

Mr. MacInnis: I think that to refuse to hear them would mean we have
not got any answer to their allegations and I don’t think that is correct. If
they come here to make propaganda—and I am quite sure that is what they
would come here’ for—surely we have counter propaganda. Hayen't we?

The CHAIRMAN: There is this about it; it is an organization that has the
right of existence—at least it is legal.

Mr. GREEN: Mr. Chairman, we have our Canadian representatives in the
United Nations who have taken part in discussing the proposals which are now
made by these people and our representatives have taken a stand and I do not
think that anyone in Canada could accuse the Canadians at the United Nations
of being unfair in the approach to the problem. There has been debate there
at great length and the utmost patience shown. We all know what the result
has been. Now, surely it is not the purpose of this committee to allow a group
of people who are, in my opinion, loyal to another country rather than to
Canada, to come here and use this committee as a vehicle to spread this
propaganda all across Canada. It is bound to have some effect because a lot
of unthinking people will say “Oh, well, there must be something in it when
we have the External Affairs Committee discussing it”. Mr. Maclnnis says
we have the opportunity to counter that propaganda, but we have not got any
such opportunity at all. They come here and make rash statements which are
bound to be reported and we are not in a position to spread the same kind of
propaganda, and I think it is time that representatives of the Canadian people



24 7 STANDING COMMITTEE

& ®
stop being used as dupes by these communists. They do not want to impress
us, they know exactly what our attitude is. They are simply using us as a
means of spreading their propaganda across Canada. I think the committee
would be very unwise to allow itself to be used in that way.

Mr. GoopE: May I be allowed to speak to my motion. I fully agree with
Mr. Green. This is not a propaganda committee. It has been expressed in the
House many times that this is a non-political committee. I have never seen
politics brought ‘into this committee at any time I have sat on it. I support
Mr. Green’s submission to you that these people be not allowed to come here.
My own view is Endicott and his crew wish to come here to use this committee
for their own purposes and as Mr. Green says we have not the wherewithal to
counteract that. These people in my opinion are not Canadians at all. They
are trying to use any means at their disposal, if we will allow them to, to use
this committee for bringing to the Canadian people, or those gullible enough
to believe them, the Russian point of view. Perhaps this is not the proper -«
time to say it, but if I were in Ottawa at the time this committee did see fit
to see them, I would certainly not sit on this committee while they were here.
I have no sympathy with them. I am quite sure this committee has no
sympathy with them and if they want to come here just for propaganda
purposes I would ask you, Mr. Chairman, to put my motion to a vote and see
that they do not come here.

The CHAIRMAN: I just want to say this. It is right that before this com-
mittee they might spread their propaganda, but it is also right that we have
the power to answer that propaganda.

Mr. GAUTHIER (Portneuf): It is all right if we are as well organized as
they are, but we are not.

The CHAIRMAN: Any further discussion?
Mr. DEcorg: I do not think we should lower ourselves.

Mr. RicHARD: The only thing I have got to say is it is not necessary to
answer such a request as this immediately. We have work to do and surely
we are not going to waste our time discussing Endicott; and when we are
finished our business we will discuss this matter. We would discuss the
request.

The CHAIRMAN: There is a motion before the committee.

Mr. CroLy: May I make one suggestion. Mr. Graydon, I think, raised a
very important point. I think there is a short answer that will suit everyone’s
purpose and meet any objection that some of us may have about not hearing
one who is a Canadian citizen, and giving him an opportunity to state his case.
They are talking to you about peace in Korea. That is the representation.
I think that Mr. Pearson gave them the answer that this committee ought to
give them. They should be told to use their influence and suggest to the
Russians and their satellites that they support the Indian resolution at the
United Nations. That is the short answer. All of us are in favour of the
Indian resolution. We supported it in the United Nations as we still support it,
and that is our way of bringing peace in Korea. '

Mr. McCUSKER: A shorter answer is to say that we have received the
application and give them the answer you have suggested and not hear them
at all and waste our time.

Mr. CroLL: There is something that rubs me the wrong way about not
- hearing people who have something to say. I do not agree with them, but
there is a strength we have that they have not got in that we hear everyone
and let them say what they wish to say. They have not any real arguments
that we cannot meet. We will meet their propaganda with truth and the
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truth of the niatter is we supported the Indian resolution before the United
Nations which will bring peace in Korea. We should tell them that.

Mr. MAcDoUGALL: And the truth will make you fret.
Mr. CHAIRMAN: If it was told to them here it might have some effect.
Mr. CroLL: Pretty well voiced my views.

Mr. MacInNIS: We have been working with other members of the United
Nations for the past two years to bring about peace in Korea. Some very
constructive steps have been taken which we supported and it is not our fault
nor is it the fault of the democratic countries in the United Nations that these
steps have not succeeded in bringing peace in Korea. Surely we can make a
constructive statement and if with all the power and influence of the govern-
ment we cannot get it over to the people of Canada, there is certainly
something wrong.

Mr. McCuskEeR: The only drawback as I see it is that we are giving them
the recognition they are seeking. We are recognizing them as an official body
putting forward claims for peace in Korea, which we know they do not want.
We do not want to give them that recognition.

Mr. GraypoN: Coming back to what I said, they are seeking to make
representations to the wrong body. These people ought to be making represen-
tations to the Politburo and their friends behind the iron curtain, for that is
where the real obstacles to a Korean truce lie, and if these people are as
friendly as they say they are with these people behind the iron curtain those
are the people to whom they ought to make representations and not to us. I do
not understand why this committee should even bother about discussing the
question of these people coming here because this is not the place they should
come. They should go to the place where the obstacles lie.

The CHAairRMAN: I brought this matter up because it is a matter that should
be dealt with by the Committee.

Mr. CroLL: Mr. Chairman, in view of the discussion this morning should
we go on record on this matter? I think we have indicated to the Chairman
what the reply should be. I think it would be a mistake now for us to put
ourselves on record which is merely giving these people a further opportunity
for propaganda. The Chairman can well deal with the matter. He knows
our views. He can direct them to the appropriate body. I do not think we
ought to deal with it here by way of a resolution. I see no advantage in
having them go about the country saying they could not get a hearing before
a Canadian public body. Why give them that opportunity, and why put
ammunition in their hands? Our difficulties are resolved by directing them,
as some have indicated, to the appropriate body.

Mr. MacDouGALL: I think Mr. Croll will recall that last year we had a
request from the head of the Canadian Peace Congress and it came up for
discussion before this committee. This committee recommended that we do not
hear them and they are in the same category in my opinion.

The CHAIRMAN: It is the same organization.

Mr. Stick: I do not know the wording of the resolution before the com-
mittee, but I think that if the Chairman replied saying that it could serve
no useful purpose for them to appear before the committee it will answer our
purpose. There is something to be said for Mr. Croll’s statement. I do not
want them here. If you reply pointing out the appropriate authorities and
saying it will serve no useful purpose for them to appear before this committee
I agree. I do not think we should have a flat refusal by this committee because,
as Mr. Croll said, you give them a chance to make propaganda and say they
were not heard.
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Mr. DeEcore: Mr. Chairman I think your reply should be that they should
make representations to the Politburo.

The CHAIRMAN: I will ask for the mover to withdraw the resolution.

Mr. GAUTHIER (Portneuf): Why waste time. with these people. We have
had enough of that correspondence with these people and it ought to stop
with Endicott in Canada. I think we should take a vote on that motlon of
Mr. Goode’s and stick to it.

The CHAIRMAN: If the mover and seconder do not intend to withdraw
the resolution—

Mr. Stick: What is the wording of the resolution?

The CHAIRMAN: The wording of the resolution is “that the Canadian Peace
Congress be not heard by the standing committee on external affairs’.

Mr. McCuskeR: If we defeat that resolution it means we must hear them.

The CHAIRMAN: “That the Canadian Peace Congress be not heard by the
standing committee on external affairs.”

Mr. McCuskgR: I think we should give these gentlemen a little while to
frame their resolution.

Mr. CroLL: Let me just say that a month ago the communist leaders made
an application to be heard before the Senate with respect to the eriminal code.
The Senate did hear them. It did not do them much good but they were heard.
Frankly the Senate rose in my estimation and I feel better about hearing them
rather than not hearing them. This committee has always been a non-political
body. I do not think we should go on record as refusing to hear anyone who
has something to say.

Mr. GAUTHIER (Portneuf): We are not in the same position as the Senate.

Mr. CroLL: I do not think we are in the same position. We would like to
be in that position—some of us.

Hon. MEMBER: Speak for yourself, Dave.

Mr. GAUTHIER (Portneuf): I mean Endicott and his friends.

Mr. GraYDON: I think, Mr. Chairman—and when I use this word I hope
no one will take any offence—but I do not think we can afford to be in a
position of hesitancy about this. I would like to see the motion made by Mr.
Goode and seconded by Mr. Gauthier (Portneuf) put to a vote. I think we
should take a stand once and for all on this and not allow people if they are
communist sympathizers to use this committee for their purposes, rather than
ours.

The CHAIRMAN: Those in favour of the resolution raise your hands.

Resolution carried.

Now, we will proceed with the next order of business. I suppose we
should have Mr. Wilgress make his statement without interruption and then
there will be questions after that.

Mr. BATER: Mr. Chairman, now that it has been decided by the resolution
as far as hearing these persons is concerned, might I suggest that perhaps
the committee will consider a reply to them by yourself.

The CHAIRMAN: We will take that up at the next meeting. I believe
we want to hear Mr. Wilgress.

Mr. Dana Wilgress, Under-Secretary of State for External Affairs, called:

The WiTnNEss: Mr. Chairman, before proceeding to give you my introductory
statement I would like your permission to deal with two matters which Mr.
Pearson referred to at the meeting of the committee held last Thursday. You
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will recall, Mr. Chairman, that Mr. Pearson said he would have a statement
prepared on the relationship of the department to the international service
of the C.B.C. That statement is now in the course of preparation and I hope
we shall be in a position to submit it to the committee this week.

Also, during the course of last Thursday’s meeting, Mr. Pearson answered
several of your questions about various countries which have troops in Korea
but unfortunately he had to leave before he could answer as fully as he wished
and he has asked me to fill in the rest of the picture.

Our information is supplied by the United Nations and the following is
their most recent list of countries whose offers of ground forces for use in
Korea have been accepted. I have asked that this list be checked at United
Nations headquarters so that if there are any changes I shall be able to let
you know.

The countries, in alphabetical order, are: Australia, Belgium, Canada,
Colombia, Cuba, Ethiopia, France, Greece, Luxembourg, Netherlands, New
Zealand, Philippines, Thailand, Turkey, United Kingdom, United States of
America.

You will note, Mr. Low, that in answer to your specific question, the Latin
American countries whose offers of ground forces have been accepted are
Colombia and Cuba. .

I shall now, with your permission Mr. Chairman, proceed with my
introductory statement which—

Mr. CroLL: Do I understand these countries actually have forces in being
in Korea?

The WiTNESS: These are countries whose offers of ground forces have
been accepted.

Mr. CroLL: Are the forces in Korea?

The WiITNESS: According to our information they are in Korea. But as I
said, Mr. Croll, our list may not be up to date and we are endeavouring to
check with the United Nations.

We have just had a message that our hst is up to date so that is the list of
countries whose forces are at present time in Korea.

Mr. McCuskeRr: Have offers from other countries not been accepted?

The WiTNEss: Yes, there are other countries whose offers have not been
accepted, for infstance, Bolivia, Costa Rica, San Salvador, Panama and the
nationalist government of China.

I will now proceed with my introductory statement. I have been told,
for this is my first appearance before the standing committee, that it is
customary for the Under-Secretary to make an introductory statement, drawing
attention to the main features of the estimates.

I feel that my remarks can be made fairly brief this year. You have had
in your hands for some days now the mimeographed statement of our estimates
and expenditures that we usually give you, and you will have noticed that
it has been enlarged somewhat this year to provide more detail. We have given
you a short but, I think, a reasonably complete explanation of the main
increases and decreases in our estimates. It might, therefore, be sufficient for
me at this stage to make a few general remarks by way of furnishing the
setting for the figures you have before you. Any further information which
you may need can be provided in response to questions as each vote is
considered in turn.

First I should like to refer to recommendations made by this committee
last year—more particularly to the recommendations which had to do with
the administrative aspects of the department and to figures in the estimates.
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One of the recommendations was that the Canadian delegation to the
United Nations General Assembly continue to urge that the budgetary contri-
butions of the Soviet Union and its satellite countries be increased so that they
will contribute in proportion to their ability to pay. Members of the committee
may be aware that for the third consecutive year increases have been
recommended for each country with the exception of Czechoslovakia. As a
result of this increase the U.S.S.R. now becomes the second largest contributor
to the administrative expenses of the United Nations. The United States’
contribution for 1953 has been set at 35.12 per cent, that of the U.S.S.R. at
12.28 per cent, the United Kingdom at 10.30 per cent, and Canada at 3.30
per cent.

In the early stages of the organization the countries of the soviet bloc
were given special consideration because of—and here I quote: “the temporary
dislocation of their national economies arising out of the second world war”.
However, as the war receded it became evident that the extensive and demon-
strable improvement in the economies of these countries—an improvement
which they were quick to claim in other contexts—was not reflected fully
in their contributions to the United Nations. Successive Canadian delegations
have been. strongly critical of the low contributions paid by the U.S.S.R. and
its satellites and have pressed with other like-minded countries for their
increase in the hope that it would remove most of the maladjustments still
evident in the scales. The progress that has been made is reflected in the
following figures, which represent the:

Scale of Assessments, as percentages, recommended by the
United Nations Contributions Committee and
approved by the General Assembly.

1950 1951 1952 1953,

Byelofussig le. | dat 0-22 0-24 0-34 0-43
Czechoslovakia ........... 0-90 0-99 1-05 1-05
Poland ssiel. 0. . ol e 0-95 1-05 1-36 1-58
Elkraimete: .l . sl | 0-84 0-92 1-30 1:~63
VLSS R ) . SR 6-34 6-98 9-85 ““12:28

Another recommendation of this committee last year was that the govern-
ment continue to give active support to the Colombo Plan; that it give
immediate consideration to strengthening Canada’s official and technical
representation in South and Southeast Asia; and to the provision of adequate
housing for representatives already stationed in that area. I wish to say
something on each of these points.

Members of the committee will have noted at Vote 102 that the customary
contributions both to the Colombo Plan and to technical assistance under that
plan are combined this year in one vote.

Mr. Cavell, the administrator of the Colombo Plan in Canada, who is an
officer of the Department of Trade and Commerce, left on February 19 for
South Asia where he will examine economic development projects in India,
Pakistan and Ceylon and will consult with government authorities and Canadian
representatives in these countries on plans for further Canadian aid. As
a result of this on-the-spot survey it is expected that agreement will be
hastened on useful and practical projects to complete the 1952-53 program
and to work out the 1953-54 program.

Economic development is, by its very nature, a long-term process and the
most useful projects usually require considerable detailed preparatory work
and planning, while their actual execution and financing may cover a period
of several years. In order to allow for such orderly planning of programs
and the most effective use of Canadian contributions to the Colombo Plan, it
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is essential that the funds voted annually by parliament should be available
beyond the normal period of the fiscal year in which they are voted. It is
for this reason that the final supplementary estimates this year will contain a
vote for Colombo Plan aid so worded as to provide for the setting up of a
special account in the Consolidated Revenue Fund which will remain available
to cover expenses for projects which may take two years or more to complete.
With the details of the vote on page 176 of the estimates there is a mention
of this intention. _

As far as strengthening our official representation in South and Southeast
Asia, I can tell the committee little that is specific at this time. I am sure the
members of the committee appreciate that an expansion of Canadian repre-
sentation requires discussions with other governments, and that until those
discussions have been completed it is not possible to make public announce-
ments. But I can say this. Preliminary planning has been undertaken for
the opening of two posts in that area. You may have noted from the explanatory
material given to you, and also from the figure given on page 169 of the
estimates, that a provision of money for new missions not mentioned by
name has been made. Our intentions are therefore in the open; even though
the actual locations are not. It is probable that further information can
be made available before the committee has concluded its consideration of
the estimates.

In some cases of course the necessary formalities have been completed
and the opening of new offices has already been announced. You will find
provision in the estimates, by name, for two new missions in Latin America—
in Uruguay and Colombia—and for an embassy in Venezuela where previously
there was a consulate-general. Similarly, provision is made for a small
diplomatic office in Vienna and for a consulate-general in Los Angeles. I
should also mention that certain of our posts have undergone a change in
status or were open for only part of the present fiscal year, which means
that additional funds will be needed for their operation during the coming
fiscal year. In addition to the embassy in Venezuela to which I have already
referred, these changed status posts include Finland, Portugal and our delegation
to the North Atlantic Treaty Organization. Then of course there is to be an
embassy in Spain as was announced on February 21. This expansion in the
operations of the department which has had to be deferred until our position
as regards trained staff had undergone some improvement accounts for the
major part of the increase in our operating expenses.

Having spoken about new missions, by way of enlarging on the more
limited question of representation in Southeast Asia, let me return for a few
moments to that area to make a few general comments on what is being
done under the Colombo Plan. During the first part of our participation in
technical assistance programs for South and Southeast Asia the Canadian
contribution was confined mainly to making available training facilities in
Canada for trainees nominated by the United Nations and by the Asian
governments. It is now possible to report, however, that very specific progress
has been made in the recruiting of Canadian technical experts to serve in the
Asian countries. The services which these Canadian experts are providing are
not restricted to advisory functions. The type of expert being recruited
combines the giving of his expert advice te the recipient government with the
training of people in the country who can carry on with the development
projects or with the local training programs long after the expert has returned
to Canada.

For example, we have lent to the government of Ceylon under the
Colombo program a senior professor of agriculture who will organize the
newly established Department of Agriculture at the University of Ceylon. A
soil conservation expert from Western Canada has also gone to that country
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as director of the newly organized soil conservation department. Offers have
been made to India of a senior navigation and seamanship expert to serve as
principal of the Technical and Engineering College in Bombay and of a voca-
tional training expert to act as an adviser on vocational training to the Indian
Ministry of Labour. Discussions are in progress about assistance we can give
to the government of Pakistan in the setting up of an agricultural machinery
maintenance depot in that country. Canadian agricultural engineers who will
go out in connection with this project will train young Pakistanis who in time
can take over the maintenance of agricultural machinery being provided to
that country under the capital assistance programs.

In the course of advising the governments to which they have been loaned
Canadian technical experts sent cut under the Colombo program may produce
recommendations leading to a Canadian-assisted capital project in that country.
For instance, recommendations of a Canadian fisheries expert sent to Ceylon
a year ago have resulted in a project for the development of fisheries there
which Canada is financing under the capital development part of the Colombo
Plan. In a similar manner capital development projects in which Canada is
assisting Colombo Plan countries in turn generate further requirements for
technical assistance. For example, as a direct result of capital assistance
Canada is giving to Pakistan, to build a cement plant, the government of
Pakistan has asked that selected Pakistani workers and engineers be trained
in the building and the operation of the plant as the project goes forward.

On the subject of housing, which was mentioned in the committee’s
recommendations last year, members may have noticed under Vote 88 that a
substantial sum has been included to permit us to provide housing for our
representatives abroad. Moreover, it may be recalled that our explanatory
notes emphasized that priority in this matter would be given to our needs in
South and Southeast Asia as your committee recommended. In Karachi the
housing situation is extremely difficult: constant efforts are being made to
find suitable rented accommodation, but with the over-crowded conditions
prevailing there virtually none exists. We have also taken steps to be in a
position to take advantage of the occasional offer for sale of suitable houses
that appear on the market. Two proposals which would provide suitable
living accommodation for Canadian personnel of both the Department of
External Affairs and the Department of Trade and Commerce are now under
active consideration. For New Delhi a proposal involving the purchase and
renovation of a building in which might be constructed some half-dozen apart-
ments for the housing of Canadian staff is also being considered; but it has
not yet reached the recommendation stage.

We have asked this year for fairly heavy reappropriations of blocked cur-
rency in Vote 89 for capital developments. A substantial proportion of these
are more in the nature of re-votes; for members will note from page 165 of the
estimates that our estimated total expenditure under blocked currency for
1952-53 is some $531,000 out of an appropriation of $1,654,000. Last year,
I am afraid, we were overly optimistic about the amount of progress we
would make in our construction planning in Europe. The preparation and
consideration of the plans for the office in The Hague, the office in Paris and
the office and residence in Rome took much longer than was anticipated. It
will not, be until 1953-54 that the real work of each of these projects will start.

Members may be interested in the figures shown for the numbers of staff.
You will note—on pages 161 and 164 of the estimates—that again this year
we have reduced our continuing establishment of positions by the number
which we estimate will probably be vacant because of staff turnover and delay
in opening new posts. It may appear strange, for instance, that we are asking
this year for 554 positions under departmental administration as opposed to
561 last year—a reduction of seven in a year when we are faced with a fairly

(o
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heavy expansion program abroad which will, of course, be reflected in head-
quarters work as well. As a matter of fact, we do expect things to be a bit
tighter in headquarters this year, for obviously new posts will have to be
staffed with experienced personnel. We can of course recruit replacements and
start training them at headquarters—and we do, by the regular examination
procedure of the Civil Service Commission. But, as we explained last year,
there is always a lag in our staffing. We do net wish to fill our total require-
ments in any one year; for if we did we would have to take a good many
candidates of a lower standard than is usually found at the top of each grad-
uating class. We therefore strive to keep enough positions open to provide for
the best candidates who graduate from year to year and who qualify in our
entrance examinations. This policy keeps us a little bit shy of staff—but we.
feel that in the long run it pays dividends. We are not really as badly off as
the figures might seem to indicate. Although the continuing establishment
we are requesting is 554 people in departmental administration for the coming
year, our actual strength is lower than this—546 persons on December 31,
1952. So that even if none were moved abroad to new posts, we would still
have room for a modest intake.

. The increase in the continuing establishment for representation abroad—
from 753 to 836—is almost entirely accounted for by the staff needs of the
new posts to be opened during this coming fiscal year.

Members of the committee may have noticed that the expenses of the
Canadian section of the Permanent Joint Board on Defence have now been
included under the departmental administration Vote No. 85. In previous
years the expenses of this board have appeared as a separate vote of $10,000
with provision being made in it to pay a salary to the chairman of the Canadian
section. As the full salary of the chairman of the board has now been placed
in the estimates for the International Joint Commission there is no longer need
to provide for part of his salary separately in the estimates for the board. We
have therefore discontinued that vote and have absorbed the remainder of the
vote—the travelling expenses of the board—in our vote for departmental
administration.

That is all, Mr. Chairman, I think I need to say at the moment in a general
way in introducing our estimates. My statement today and the mimeographed
material which has been distributed to the committee have been intended to
anticipate questions which may arise in your minds, and to explain broadly
what we are requesting and why. Needless to say, I and the other officers of
the department will be glad to furnish whatever further information you may
need as the various votes come up for consideration.

Mr. MacDoucALL: Mr. Chairman, we have, I believe, a consul-general now
in the person of Norman Senior in San Francisco. Is there a great increase in
the work in that area, the Pacific northwest, that will apparently, in the eyes
of the department, justify another placement in Los Angeles?

The WiTnESS: Yes, we find that there is a real need for consular repre-
sentation on the Pacific coast. We have a consul-general at San Francisco.
Mr. Senior has been acting in that position—his rank is that of consul—but
a new consul general, Mr. Eberts, is going shortly to take up his position in
San Francisco. In Los Angeles there is a very large Canadian colony, and
there is a great deal of work to be done to make Canada better known there,
in the way of answering inquiries about Canada, in promoting tourist' work,
and in looking after all sorts of inquiries in addition. There was a trade office
in Los Angeles under the Department of Trade and Commerce and we found
that this office was receiving a lot of inquiries which did not have much to do
with trade. Many of these inquiries were of a general nature which had more
to do with the Department of External Affairs. So Trade and Commerce
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decided to close their office and approached us, and we decided it would be
unfortunate if there were no longer a Canadian government office in the Los
Angeles area. We therefore decided to take the office over and turn it into
a consulate-general. While there is to be a new consulate-general, it is really
in a sense a continuation, under a different status, of the Canadian government
_office that has been there for some years.

By Mr. Green:

Q. How do you arrange with the Department of Trade and Commerce for
representation? In other words, is it possible for an officer of the Department
of Trade and Commerce to become a ‘consul-general?—A. It is possible,
Mr. Green, and it has been done in certain places. .For instance, in Manila an
officer of the Department of Trade and Commerce is acting as consul-general,
but ordinarily it is a question as to what is our main interest in the particular
post. If the main interest is trade, then it is more logical that it should be
looked after by an officer of the Department of Trade and Commerce, and if
the interest is of a general character, dealing with all activities of government,
then it is better for the officer in charge to be a representative of the Depart-
ment of External Affairs, and that is what we have discovered to be the case
in Los Angeles. Needless to say, our officers will be glad to do such trade work
as they are able to, annd which they can perform, by passing on to Ottawa
trade inquiries and other matters relating to commerce that they receive. It is
always open to the Department of Trade and Commerce, if they feel it is
justified, to attach to the consulate-general a trade officer who will deal with
the trade end of the work, but I think in the case of Los Angeles it will not
be found necessary.

Q. Is there any reason why an officer of the Department of Trade and
Commerce should not be made a consul-general under the Department of
External Affairs?—A. He would not be under the Department of Trade and
Commerce then. If he was to be under External Affairs, we would have to
take him over. We have taken over officers of the Department of Trade and
Commerce. The former consul-general in San Francisco, Mr. Scott, had been
a trade commissioner. We took him over and appointed him consul-general
in San Francisco. He is now our ambassador in Havana.

Q. There is no reason why that cannot be done?—A. No it has been done
in several cases.

Mr. McCuUSKER: Is it customary to appoint both an ambassador and a
consul to the one post?

The WITNESS: An ambassador has dlplomatlc functions in that he repre-
sents the government vis-a-vis the government of the country to which he is
accredited. We could also have a consul general. Some countries do that,
but we usually find that our embassy staff can look after consular matters,
and we appoint a member of the staff as consul and he looks after the consular
end of the work.

Mr. GRAYDON: May I ask you, Mr. Wilgress, in the number of embassies or
high commissionerships Canada has throughout the world, what proportion of
those holding those higher posts are definitely career men who have come up
through the ordinary diplomatic channels, and how many are appointed from
circles outside the department? Could you give us any idea as to the
percentage?

The WiTNESS: I do not think I could offhand, but we certainly could very
readily make the calculation.

Mr. MacDouGALL: Unfair question!

The Witness: We can, of course, go over the list and very readily tell you
who is career and who is not career. I think if you would allow me, Mr.
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Chairman, I could make a calculation and answer Mr. Graydon’s question
another time.

Mr. COTE: Am I to understand that we have taken another step forward
in that we do not rely any more, as we formely did, on the British consuls
in various parts of the world to do work pertaining to Canada?

The WiTNESS: Yes, the opening of our consulates in the United States is
really a recognition that the volume of work pertaining to Canadians has
become so heavy that it is no longer fair to impose that burden on the British

- consuls in the United States. That has actually been the case where we have

appointed consuls; the British consuls were doing the work of looking after
the interests of our citizens and doing other work pertaining to Canada. That .
work is fairly heavy and the British consuls in the United States had a very
great deal of work to do.

Mr. CroLL: In countries where you rely on British consulates, do you
compensate them for the work they do, or is it a matter of courtesy that you
return in some other part of the world?

The WITNESS: We do not compensate them directly, but British consuls have
fees for certain services, and if the services they perform are covered by their
regular fees, then they charge a fee. These are payable by Canadians as well
as other British subjects to the consul, but the Canadian government does not
compensate them directly.

By Mr. Graydon:

Q. I know we have no embassy in Indonesia, but have we any representa-
tion at lower levels in Indonesia?—A. No, we have not.

Q. I take it it would be a fair assumption, when you are filling those posts
that you spoke of, that Indonesia has not been entirely overlooked. Shall I
go as far as to say that?—A. I cannot make any comments on that assumption.

By Mr. Goode:

Q. Mr. CralrMAN: I would like to ask Mr. Wilgress about these young
university graduates he has been talking about—graduates from Canadian
colleges, I take it. What are the qualifications required of these young
graduates before they are taken into the service?—A. Well, there is quite a
detailed list of qualifications; but the essentials are graduation from a
recognized university and, if-possible, post-graduate work.

Q. Is there @any way by which you can help a chap to finance his course
through college? Suppose a young fellow took his third year, and suppose
he looked like promising material for your department?—A. No, we have
no provision for that.

Q. What then do you do to encourage men to come into your depart-
ment, where I would expect the salaries to be lower than'in industrial life,
for example?—A. We hold a competfition through the Civil Service Com-
mission. That competition is well advertised and there always are more
applicants than there are positions available. The examination is held; the
papers are marked, and then the successful candidates go before an oral board
where they are marked further, and we take those who are at the head of

_ the line.

Q. You say there always are more applicants for the positions than there
are positions?—A. Yes, many, many more.

Mr. BENIDICKSON: What is the salary offered those applicants?
The WiTnEss: The starting salary is $3,280.

vits Mr. Graypon: I have raised this question in previous committees, and it
is: why do graduates of agricultural colleges in Canada seem to be so few
71683—3
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in the diplomatic service? I am not sure that there are any, but there may
be one or two. And it seems to me that with agriculture being the important
calling it is in this country, there are a lot of technical agriculturists who
come out of agricultural colleges all across Canada each year; and it would
seem to me that some greater effort ought to be made to see that some of
those people go into the foreign service. I think it would be of tremendous
value, in some of those under-developed countries, if we had top level
diplomatic representatives there who had some knowledge of agriculture. It
seems to me in many of those instances the development of agricultural
prospects in those countries is among the things which our plans have most in
mind. 'I wonder if anything has been done in connection with that matter
in recent times?

The WiTNESS: We do not give any preference to graduates of agricultural
colleges. But I see no reason why they should not be successful if they
were to apply and write the examination. Certainly, we have among our
representatives young men who have come from farming communities. It is
true there are not many graduates of agricultural colleges because, naturally,
a graduate of an agriculture college tends to follow the profession of agriculture.
But if we did have a candidate who did well in the examination and was a
graduate-of an agricultural college, I see no reason why that fact should debar
him from being a member of the service.

Mr. JuTrAas: Can it be that the nature of the Civil Service examination
for those particular jobs might have a bearing on the question?

The WiTNEsS: Naturally the examination is intended to test the suitability
of the candidates for the Department of External Affairs and the questions
are framed along the line of what is going on in the world, about current
affairs. Agricultural specialists might have some difficulty in answering such
questions unless they had read widely on those subjects.

Mr. GrRAaYDON: Is there not a danger that the Department of External
Affairs will get into a position where it secures almost all of the post-
graduates across Canada or those who have specialized in constitutional
history and international affairs? In the days ahead I think we must watch
that we do not get over emphatic on this question of the specialist in diplomacy.
We have got to have more than specialists in diplomacy if we are going to
have good representation abroad. We must have good representatives of
the general fabric of Canada, and one of the important things is with respect
to agricultural college graduates. Practical people bring .a tremendous
amount of important knowledge to bear in any department, and I have the
feeling that you will have to watch the department in the days to come to
see that it does not get into the position where it is a highly technical depart-
ment only. You have got to have practical considerations as well as academic
considerations in any department, and I would not like to see it become over-
loaded at one end without consideration being given to the other end. I have
no doubt that the department has that situation in mind, but I do feel that
there is a definite possibility in this department if it is not very carefully
watched.

The WiTNESs: I think we are aware of the danger to which you draw
attention, Mr. Graydon. In drawing up our examination papers we do ftry
not to give undue advantage to the ones who have studied certain subjects.
What we are trying to aim at is general, all-round knowledge and ability.

Mr. LesaAGe: Is there not usually a choice in the questions asked?

The WITnESss: Yes, there is usually a choice in the questions asked. Each
candidate has the opportunity of choosing questions along the line of what he
has been studying. So you see, we do try to be as fair as possible to all types
of candidates. :
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Mr. LEsAGE: I recall having seen questions dealing with immigration in
the agricultural field many times, and in the last examination one of the ques-
tions was on constitutional law and another question was especially on our
agricultural products. You had a choice between the two, so you did not have
to be an expert in constitutional law; you could be an expert in agriculture or
know more about agriculture, and have the same advantage as the constitu-
tional lawyer because there was that choice available between the two
questions.

Mr. GRAYDON: There may be a choice, but the result is that there are
hardly any farmers in this, as it is now.

Mr. LEsAGE: We have agricultural attaches who are agronomists, that
I know of.

Mr. GREEN: Is it the practice for the young men who wish to go into the
diplomatic service to take special courses at the university? They probably
know very well what subjects are needed, and I presume they choose their
courses accordingly.

The WiTNESS: Yes, many do. They choose their courses with an eye to
entering the department. Quite often they consult with us and ask for our
advice on what courses we think would be most suitable. But in answer to
Mr. Graydon I might say that we have men in our service familiar with agri-
culture. Our minister in Norway is a farmer.

Mr. GRAYDON: Yes, and I know his farm very well.
The WITNESS: He has a farm in Peel county.
Mr. GrRaypoN: Well, he once lived right next to it.

The WiTneEss: And Mr. Hemsley who is sitting on my right is a graduate
of an agricultural college.

Mr. GRAYDON: I am glad that he got his chores done so early this morning.
The WITNESS: And also Mr. Hicks. So, we do have some.

Mr. GraYDON: You have enough to let you out of my question, but not
enough to balance the others.

By Mr. MacDougall:

Q. Is not that point very well pointed up with respect to the Colombo
Plan? The people down there were not concerned about graduates in political
philosophy, but they requested the Federal Government, in the administration
of the Colombo Plan, for practical men. I know in British Columbia that two
expert fishermen went down. Certainly, and admittedly they are not there
as representatives, so to speak, of the External Affairs Department. They are
tied up in it as practical men and not as political advisers.—A. No, not at all.
They are going under the program for technical cooperation with the govern-
ments of those countries.

Q. That is right.—A. For the specific purpose of advising the government,
or training specialists of that country in this particular line of work. Of
course many have gone in that connettion.

Mr. MAcINNIS: A fisherman needs to be a diplomat at times.
Mr. CrRoLL: As far as patience goes, he must have a lot of it.

By Mr. Kirk:

Q. Do I understand from the discussion that these young lads who go into
the department are all university graduates. And if so, do they, by and large,
or the vast majority of them, come directly from university to the department,
or do they have any work experience in other fields?—A. It varies. Some of
them come to us directly from university. That is, many of them have grad-
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uated from Canadian universities and gone in for post-graduate work, and
have come directly to the department. On the other hand, others have been
engaged in some form of civilian occupation before taking the examination.

Q. But by and large, they come directly from school?—A. They may
come directly from school, but they must be 23 years of age or above.

The CHAIRMAN: In your question, Mr. Graydon, did you fear that only
privileged classes will get those positions? You mentioned farmers, but there
are workers and craftsmen and so on, and it embraces qulte a ﬁeld when we
get into that discussion.

Mr. GrRAYDON: My only point was that year in and year out the top
students of many universities move into the Department of External Affairs.
Now, I do not care whether it be agriculture or what it is, but if you get lop-
sided on the question of higher education in any line, you are likely to run into
trouble. I think I can say that, because I am a graduate of a university
myself, so it is not a questfion of bearing a prejudice against that type of
person. But I do think that you do not always get a monopoly of common
sense, .good judgment, and shrewd diplomacy from those who come out of
universities. I am looking at one right now.

Mr. MAacDouGALL: No, two.
Mr. GrRAYDON: No, just one.
Mr. Stick: The legal profession.

Mr. GraypoN: But I do think there is a point, whether I have made it
very clear or not; and if I were going to pick out some good, shrewd people
to deal with important problems in another country, representing Canada, I
think I would not have them, perhaps, all university graduates in the doing of it
because it seems to me there is no way of training people, sometimes, in
common sense and good judgment and soundness in approach. I do not want
it to be regarded as an attack on university people because that obviously
would be unfair to the people that we have in our diplomatic service. But I
do think we ought to have people in our diplomatic service besides those who
are post-graduates of universities across Canada. I would like to see the
Department of External Affairs a little better balanced up with practical, sound,
common sense people along with common sense people from universities,  if
you like; but it does seem to me to make for soundness that there should be a
balance in that respect, especially in the case of a new department, it is the
natural thing that you should try to pick up the top level students from
university, with high honours, and bring them into the department. I have
no objection to that but I do think there should be a lot of practical people
as well, because I think such people are badly needed in diplomacy today.
I have attended five United Nations General Assemblies and I want to tell
you this: You have got to have a balance, in my opinion, between parliament-
arians and people who are technical experts in diplomacy. I think that would
make for a strong team. I think the Canadian Delegation generally has
recognized that fact and so have the United States. That is their approach,
and if it applies in United Nations circles, it ought to apply in diplomacy gener-
ally. I have no doubt that some of those embassies across the world are
manned entirely by technical people. Whether that is right or not, I do not
know. I think you have got to have something more than technically manned
posts. That is my point. I am not questioning it, but I do think there should
be a warning and a caution given to the department that it should not want
to go lopsided one way or the other. Important as it is to have brilliant people
in this department—and we have got a lot of brilliant ones—I think it is
important to have practical people as well.

Mr. Kirg: Is the type you speak of interested? I do believe the type you
get by taking university graduates is one of the best you can get. Going back
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to the question of experience, I feel that there is a danger within the Depart-
ment of External Affairs that we may get too academic and technical men.
Do you put any value on work experience? You say you will not take them
unless they are 23 and not after 30 for the first grade and if particularly well
qualified even over 30; and do you get a few more? I thought you say very few
people came in who did not have experience in other fields. I have not the
experience Gordon Graydon has in the United Nations but I got the impression

he has. 3

Mr. BENIDICKSON: You understood we were recruiting young people out
of colleges without training and practical experience.

The WITNESS: I think I may have been misunderstood. Certainly we do
give extra marks for one who has practical experience. When the oral board
is held, one of the things they do give particular weight to is practical experi-
ence, but perhaps the majority of the men we take in have not had much
experience in other jobs.- They come from the universities. I cannot give you
the percentage, it varies from year to year. There are some who come in who
have had practical experience and if they have it helps them to get a higher
standing in the examination.

Mr. BENIDICKSON: In other words, a person seekmq to eventually go into
the department would be better off if he did not apply immediately upon his
graduation from college and took some outside experience?

" The WirnEss: Yes, that would be favourably considered. He would have
an advantage.

Mr. MacINNIS: People make applications for positions in the civil service;
you do not go out looking for people. That is the reason why you get so
many young men direct from university. They take their examinations while in
the university.

The WitNess: They have to take a degree before they can qualify, but
most of them take it after they have done some type of work. The minimum
age is 23 so most of them have done some work after graduation.

The CHAIRMAN: There is quite a difference between Canada and the United
States in the diplomatic service. In the United States they make their appoint-
ments differently from ours. I believe our system is better.

Mr. GraypoN: I do not think we should have all career men at the top
or all non-career men like in the United States. I think a balance is important.
I could name you half a dozen outstanding farmers—I am not especially
stressing that people known perhaps better than any of our diplomats in any
of the countries, because they are known because of their business and I
think a top level man representing Canada in a foreign country is likely to be a
show-window for the Canadian people and the result is he can do a tremendous
job in selling this country and putting its best foot forward if he is the right
type; and I often think it is a shame we have not had more often representing
this country in some important post some of our own distinguished farmers in
Canada because farming is highly important to the country, and that would
apply to other industries and businesses as well. I do think there is something
in my point, probably not conclusive, but I want to stress it.

Mr. Stick: Was not Ferguson a university graduate?

Mr. GrRaYDON: Yes.

Mr. Stick: What university?

Mr. Graypon: Toronto, I think.

By Mr. Green:

Q. I suppose the diplomatic service is almost a profession today and young
men are trained accordingly just as they are trained for any other profession?—



= M{?i‘r‘vjlﬁ"ﬁﬁ'
¥y -

)

P wy

38 : STANDING COMMITTEE

A. We do find that we must have men who have been trained in the department
before we can send them abroad. Moreover, as the members of this committee
I am sure are all aware, many of our heads of posts are non-career men.
They are men who have followed some other vocation and been appointed
heads of mission, but we do find they would be in great difficulty if they did
not have assisting them at their elbow these young men we have trained who
are experts in that type of work. That is very necessary. Any of the non-
career men who went abroad would admit they could not function properly
wi'ghout that assistance.

The CHAIRMAN: We have government officials abroad who go out of their
* way to help people who visit their office. That was my experience and I heard
that from several Canadians visiting Europe at the time.

Mr. CroLL: The Department of External Affairs has been within recent
years the fastest growing department in the government and most of the
universities have counsellors, personnel counsellors, and have not they been
keeping an eye out for bright capable young men who have an inclination to
enter government service and have been directing them towards the Department
of External Affairs with the result that you have been able to get about the
best thére is in Canada?

The WiTneESs: That is very true. I agree with every word of it.

Mr. GReeN: To what extent are young men being brought from India,
Pakistan and Ceylon for training in Canada under the Colombo Plan?

The WiTnEss: That is as you know quite an extensive part of the Colombo
Plan program to bring men from these countries and train them in Canada.

Mr. RicHARD (Ottawa East): And young women too.
The Witness: I think we will have to get those figures, but we can give
them to you.

By Mr. Green:

Q. In other words some young people come in that way and there are
others coming from different industries in these other commonwealth nations
for purposes of observation. For example, a year or two ago there were quite
a few young hydro electric engineers brought to Canada I think. I don’t
suppose they came here for university training but mainly to observe?—A. That
is still being done. That is part of the Colombo Plan technical program to
observe certain fields of endeavour that can be helpful to them.

Q. Can we have a report on that?—A. Yes, we can give you the details
on that later.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any more questions on the general statement
made by Mr. Wilgress.

Mr. GRaypoN: May I ask Mr. Wilgress for some further details?

The WiTNESS: Here are some details as to the number of experts and
trainees we have taken up to the 31st of December: from Ceylon 4 experts,
9 trainees; India 1 expert and 52 trainees; Pakistan one expert and 43 trainees;
a total of 6 experts and 104 trainees.

By Mr. Green:

Q. Do these trainees attend Canadian universities?—A. In some cases, yes.
In other cases they go to industries or they might go to some undertaking and
be trained in that undertaking. There was one working at the Film Board
here and there are various types of technical training.

Q. Is it the intention to extend that undertaking or have we reached the
limit of it?—A. We are constantly giving attention to that side of the Colombo
program.
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Mr. GRAYDON: May I ask if any appoinment as yet has been made to the
Spanish embassy from Canada or is that still under consideration?

The WrTnEss: That is still under consideration.

- The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions on the statement made
by Mr. Wilgress? Should we adjourn now?

Agreed.

I want to thank the members of the committee for coming early on Monday
morning and in such strength. The printing of our first sitting will be delayed
for three or four days because it had to be sent to Mr. Pearson. Will it be
agreeable if we hold the next meeting on Thursday of this week at 11 a.m.?

Agreed.
The meeting is adjourned.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, February 26, 1953.

The Standing Committee on External Affairs met at 11.00 o’clock a.m. this
day. The Chairman, Mr. J. A. Bradette, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Bater, Bennett, Bradette, Coldwell, Cote
(Matapedia-Matane), Fraser, Fulford, Gauthier (Portneuf), Graydon, Green,
Kirk (Digby-Yarmouth), Low, MacDougall, MacInnis, MacKenzie, McCusker,
Picard, Pinard, Quelch, Richard (Ottawa East), Robichaud.

In attendance: From the Department of External Affairs: Mr. L. D.
Wilgress, Under-Secretary, Mr. R. M. Macdonnell, Asst. Under-Secretary, Mr.
S. D. Hemsley, Finance Division and Mr. J. R. Barker, Exec. Asst. to the Under-
Secretary.

Item No. 85—Main Estimates of the Départment of External Affairs—was
further considered.

Mr. Wilgress placed on the record answers to questions respecting:
1. The International Service of the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation;

2. Heads of missions abroad who had previously been career diplomats or
were chosen from outside the public service;

3. Persons trained under the Colombo or other plans;
and was questioned thereon.

The witness submitted tables of the number of persons trained in Canada
under the Colombo and other plans. (See Appendix “A” to this day’s evidence.)

Agreed,—That the calling of Mr. Jean Désy, Director General of the Inter-
national Service of the C.B.C., be referred to the Sub-Committee on Agenda.

At 12.30 o’clock p.m. the Committee adjourned until 11.00 o’clock a.m.,
Monday, March 2.

E. W. INNES,
Clerk of the Committee.
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FEBRUARY 26, 1953.
11.00 a.m.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, we have a quorum and we will now proceed.

As you know, we are on item No. 85, departmental administration, which
gives us the opportunity to discuss matters at large. Mr. Wilgress will have

the floor. He has some statements to make.
Py

Mr. Dana Wilgress, Under Secretary of State, Department of External Affairs,
called: -

The WITNESS: Mr. Chairman, perhaps you will permit me, first of all, to
take up matters arising out of the discussions of the previous two meetings.
The members of the committee will recall that at the meeting last Thursday
Mr. Pearson said he would have a statement prepared on the relationship of
the Department of External Affairs to the International Service of the Cana-
dian Broadcasting Corporation. I have this statement ready now and with
your permission, Mr. Chairman, I propose to read it because I think it is of
general interest to the members of the committee. The statement is as follows:

During the discussion on February 19 about the Canadian Broadeasting
Corporation International Service the minister suggested and the committee
agreed that a statement should be prepared in the department about the policies
followed by the C.B.C.L.S. in its broadcasts to countries behind the iron curtain
and about its relationships with the Department of External Affairs. I should
like to give that statement to the committee.

The terms of the order-in-council establishing the International Service
provide that it should work in consultation with the Department of External
Affairs. Despite the physical difficulties presented by the location of the
C.B.C.I.S. offices in Montreal this consultation has been constant and has
developed gradually into an effective day to day liaison between us. I shall
mention these arrangements in more detail later.

Members of the committee will recall the very full statement on the
department’s relationships with C.B.C.L.S. which the minister gave to the com-
mittee on May 30, 1951. I do not feel it necessary to retread all of the ground
covered in that statement but for background purposes I should like to sum-
marize briefly what was said at that time and then indicate how our relation-
ships have developed since then.

The history of Canadian shortwave broadcasting falls into three periods—
the first being the late war years when C.B.C.I.S. was established to broadcast
to Canadian forces in Europe; the second period covering the early post-war
years, when it was hoped that a period of peaceful international collaboration
was in sight, and the third period which came upon us gradually with the
growing threat of Soviet imperialism. In this last phase we have become more
and more concerned in the “war of ideas”, particularly in broadcasts to Europe.

Regarding our policy in these broadcasts, I should like to quote the fol-
lowing passage from the minister’s statement in 1951:
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“In the case of western Europe, where reliable news is readily available,
it is our policy that C.B.C.LS. should help to develop, in NATO nations, a
spirit of community and the appreciation of our common heritage and destiny,
and should contribute to the growth of confidence in our common cause.

“In broadcasting to audiences behind the iron curtain, a definite aim is
pursued; and here our policy may be said to be, in the simplest terms, to
preserve peace and check’ the inroads of Soviet imperialism, in an attempt
to bring the truth about the west and about Soviet imperialism to those
people who, actively or passively, support aggressive Moscow-directed policies;
and to strengthen the morale, faith and determination of the many friends of
freedom and democracy who still live behind the iron curtain but whose voices
have been silenced. In these days when Soviet-inspired opinion ‘peace
campaign’ is being conducted all over the world, our policy is also to stress
our peaceful, unaggressive purpose while demonstrating at the same time our
ability and determination to defind ourselves against aggression and to win
a future war, which could only be started by the Soviet regime and its
obedient satellite regimes.

“As I have stated before, it is part of our program to unmask the hypocrisy
of communist ‘democracy’ in elections, trade union and labour camps, religion,
ete.,, and the hypocrisy of Soviet ‘peace propaganda’, and also to keep alive,
among the oppressed peoples of eastern Europe and the Soviet union, knowl-
edge and appreciation of liberal democracy and the civilization and code of
ethics of the west.

“In our broadcasts to eastern Europe we are careful to distinguish
between, on the one hand, the Kremlin and the satellite regimes it controls,
and, on the other hand, all the peoples of the Soviet union and the satellites,
with whom we wish only friendly, co-operative relations based on mutual
respect, and whole traditions we still honour. In other words, we attempt in
these broadcasts to distinguish between the people and their governments.

“From this you will see that policy guidance is the responsibility of the
Department of External Affairs but the execution of this policy in the main
is the responsibility of C.B.C.I.S. They are the technicians, the specialists in
the field of shortwave broadcasting who are best equipped to interpret a given
line in terms of a shortwave broadcasting program.”

That is the end of the quotation from the Minister’s statement.

This, in the main, continues to be our basic policy in broadcasts to
Europe. Recently added stress has been placed on broadcasts to the “captive”
peoples—those ethnic groups which have only recently passed behind the iron
curtain or those which have had a long history of cultural or national identity.
Here we have had to avoid any appearance of encouraging revolts, which, I
think members of the committee will agree, would only serve to make the
plight of these peoples even more unfortunate. We do, however, wish to do
what we can to keep alive their spirit and to let them know that we have not
forgotten them. As members of the committee will appreciate, this policy
presents a difficult and delicate problem for C.B.C.I.S. to solve in terms of
day-to-day broadcasts.

I shall turn now to other aspects of the problem of how to make our
broadcasts effective. One of the things that can be done in shortwave broad-
casting is to give the news, especially about international affairs, and informed
comment on current events. Indeed this is perhaps the most important con-
tribution which shortwave broadcasting can make in the “war of ideas”. One
need only reflect for a moment on the complete absence of reliable news in
a country where the press and radio are mere branches of the state propaganda
machine to realize the value that attaches to unbiased news. People who
live under these conditions have almost no other way of learning what is
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going on in the world. They are exposed to a stream of half-truths and distor-
tions from their own press and radio and it is most desirable that the facts
should be available to them. Thus it is important that the C.B.C.I.S. should
provide a good deal of straight news and also a certain amount of commentary
and opinion on the news. It has been found that listeners to these broadcasts
not only want to hear about events but want to know what opinion in the
free world may be about these events.

The department, therefore, believes that a good deal of emphasis should
be given to news and commentaries. Without in any way slanting the news or
distorting it, it is possible to counter much of what is said about us behind
the iron curtain. In this way Soviet charges against the West can be answered
and Soviet policies can be put in the proper perspective. It is not considered
desirable to imitate the polemic tone of the Soviet and satellite radios. It
is ideas and not individuals that should be attacked.

It has been indicated that some members of the committee are interested
in the methods followed to ensure that there is adequate consultation between
the department and the C.B.C.I.S. From the beginning it has been the practice
of senior officers of C.B.C.L.S. to visit Ottawa frequently for consulation with
senior officers of the department. Officers of the department have been seconded
for periods of duty with C.B.C.I.S. In this way thosé concerned with policy
at C.B.C.I.S. have been helped to familiarize themselves with the main policy
objectives we in the department follow. s

About a year ago a senior member of our foreign service, Mr. Jean
Désy, was appointed to the post of Director General of C.B.C.I.S. and in this
capacity he has been able to bring the benefits of his long and close familiarity
with Canadian foreign policy directly to bear on the technical problems of
broadcasting. An officer of this department also was appointed to form a full-
time liaison link. This officer spends part of each week in Montreal and
through him constant consultation regarding policy takes place both in Ottawa
and in Montreal. He carries with him to Montreal selected policy papers and
reports from our posts abroad and brings to Ottawa scripts of foreign language
broadcasts for comment and criticism in the Department. Some of these
scripts are sent to our posts abroad to obtain the views of Canadian representa-
tives in the areas concerned. This officer is in a position to interpret and
explain verbally to the C.B.C.I.S. the emphasis which should be placed on
the policy papers, memoranda and other relevant material supplied by the
Department. For its part, C.B.C.I.S. has a policy co-ordination unit in Montreal
and recently has established a new unit for the preparation of commentary
material to make more effective use of the information supplied by the
Department. C.B.C.IS. also now has a full-time news correspondent estab-
lished in Ottawa whose office is linked directly with C.B.C.I.S. by teletype.
Although this officer is not associated directly with the formation of policy, he
is in touch with the Department of External Affairs and with other govern-
ment departments in Ottawa and helps to ensure that C.B.C.I.S. has full
access to policy statements as soon as they are made public.

It has been our practice for some"time to have External Affairs officers
who are going abroad and many of those returning from service in other
countries spend some time at C.B.C.I.S. in Montreal for the purpose of
exchanging views and experiences.

The heads of political and geographical divisions in the department and
the heads of our missions abroad, as a part of their duties, devote attention
to the needs of C.B.C.I.S. and, although they cannot be expected constantly to
take the initiative, they do from time to time suggest lines of approach which

C.B.C.I.S. might follow, or make program suggestions which are forwarded to
Montreal with our comments.
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Now, in the changing circumstances of the “war of ideas” we have devoted
a good deal of thought to ways in which our consultation with C.B.C.I.S. might
be made still more effective. We are now on the point of establishing a small
section in the department which will have as its first responsibility the provision
of policy guidance to the C.B.C.I.S. This section will be known as the Political
Co-ordination Section and will be specifically charged with keeping C.B.C.
informed of developments which should be reflected in their broadcasts. We
believe that, by having a section to which the International Service can turn for
guidance at short notice, the existing relationship will be improved and
strengthened. Although an additional strain will thus be placed on our resources
of personnel, which, as members of the committee are aware, are hardly adequate
to meet our increasing commitments, we consider the establishment of such a
section to be justified.

There are also other means by which C.B.C.LS. policies are co-ordinated
with those of the department and the gowernment as a whole. These include
the advisory committee of C.B.C.1.S., the chairman of which is Mr. Dunton, and
includes senior officers of the Department of External Affairs and the Depart-
ment of Trade and Commerce as members. There is also the interdepartmental
committee on Canadian Information Abroad, the chairman of which is the head
of the Information Division of the department and the membership of which
includes the Department of Trade and Commerce, the Department of Citizenship
and Immigration, the National Film Board, the Bank of Canada, the Exhibition
Commission and the C.B.C.I.S. when matters likely to be of interest to the short-
wave service are being discussed.

I have dealt in such detail with this matter of consultation so that members
of the committee will know how we have approached the problem and how our
relationship with C.B.C.I.S. has developed to meet the changing circumstances
we have to face.

Members of the committee will remember that when Mr. Pearson was
speaking to the committee last Thursday he agreed with a suggestion that was
put forward by one of the members of the committee that it would be a very
good thing for Mr. Désy to come and appear before you so that he could answer
questions on the C.B.C.I.S. and any further questions you may have on the rela-
tionship that exists between the department of External Affairs and the Canadian
Broadcasting Corporation’s International Service and on the general question
of the policy guidance which we give to the C.B.C.I.S. on their broadcasts. I
have spoken to Mr. Désy and he would be very glad to place himself at the
convenience of members of the committee whenever you may desire to hear
him.

Mr. MacDougAaLL: I wonder if it would be possible, Mr. Chairman, for Mr.
Wilgress to answer two questions. Possibly he may not be able to answer either
of them.

The CHAIRMAN: Before we proceed, would you be ready to answer those
questions, Mr. Wilgress, or would you rather have them answered by Mr. Désy?

The WiTnEss: I shall be glad to answer any questions, but naturally ques-
tions which should more appropriately be addressed to Mr. Désy should be
deferred till he appears before you.

Mr. MacDoucGALL: The first was in connection with a newspaper article last
night that stated that Mr. Malenkov was in all probability replacing Mr,
Molotov as No. 2 man in the Soviet regime. I was wondering if Mr. Wilgress
would be prepared to make a statement as to whether, in his opinion or not, such
a change would be beneficial or detrimental to the free world.
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Secondly, with respect to the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation Inter-
national Service, what is the status now of Soviet jamming of our C.B.C.LS:
programs, and is there any conceptions at all by the department of how many
within the bounds of the iron curtain have radios to receive the messages that
come over the C.B.C.L.S.

The WiTNESS: In answer to the first question, I would say that from my
knowledge of the Soviet union I would not think that one could expect any
change in policies as a result of Malenkov having assumed additional respon-
sibilities in the Soviet union. :

Mr. GrRaYDON: Out of the frying pan into the fire!

The WITNESS: We know that the policies of that country are largely directed
by Stalin, and if Mr. Malenkov has been promoted, as the press statement seems
to indicate, it might simply mean that Stalin wants to have a younger and more
active man at his right hand. Moreover, one would not think that if anything
should happen to Stalin there would necessarily be any change in basic policies
because we know the Soviet regime is comprised of men who have been brought
up and educated in a certain way and imbued with certain ideas. I would think
they would continue to-be guided by those ideas in framing the policies with
which they direct the country. :

In regard to the second question, I think that had better be answered by Mr.
Désy. I have seen some statements on jamming and I know that we have a
certain amount of information about the number of radios available to people
behind the iron curtain: I think Mr. Désy has some information on that
subject which he could give you. At this time I might simply say that one of
the reasons why it seems advisable for us to continue to broadcast behind the
iron curtain is that by providing another target for the Soviet jamming service
to concern itself with, we are probably making it easier for the Voice of America
or the British Broadcasting Corporation to put their message across to listeners
behind the iron curtain.

Mr. CoTE: Does the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation International Ser-
vice operate on the same pattern, for instance, as does the United States broad-
casting service, the Voice of America?

The WiTnEss: It corresponds to the Voice of America, of the United States,
and to the B.B.C. Shortwave Service. The organizational set-up is more similar
to the B.B.C. than to that of the Voice of America. The Voice of America comes
directly under the State Department.

Mr. MacInnis: Mr. Chairman, would it be possible, or is there any reason
why it should not be done, that we have a script of the International Service
shortwave broadcasts read to the committee or given to the members?

.The WiTNEss: I think that would be possible but I would like Mr. Désy to
be consulted, because after all the C.B.C.I.S. is not the responsibility of our
department. It is the responsibility of the C.B.C.

Mr. CoLpweLL: I think there is a rather different conception between
the B.B..C. and the Voice of America on what should be sent to these countries.
If that is so which line do we take, for example, the Voice of America or the
B.B.C.?

The WITN'ESS: I think we take something of a middle line between the
two. The Voice of America probably carries on a more direct psychological
wa?fare and concerns itself less with statements of facts, news, and commen-
taries on the news. We probably are in between the two.

By Mr. Cote:

Q. Is there any co-ordination?—A. There has been an emphasis more
recently in our broadcasts on waging a war of ideas.
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Q. Is there any international co-ordination?—A. There is consultation.

Q. What is the set-up?—A. There is no specific organization for consulta-
tion but I think Mr. Désy when he comes before you will explain that there
have been consultations with the Voice of America and with the B.B.C.

Q. But there is no set-up I believe?—A. Not formally but it was men-
tioned when Mr. Pearson was before you, the NATO council from time to
time have information conferences at which these things are gone into. Mr.
Macdonnell only recently returned from such a conference which was held
in Paris.

Mr. GrayDON: May I raise a question in regard to the practical policy that
is followed now in the preparation of the broadcasting of these messages behind
‘the iron curtain. There was a good deal of discussion at previous committees—
I am not sure whether it was the last one—but in at least one committee two
years ago in which the question of the closer liaison between the Department
of External Affairs and the C.B.C. with regard to the international service was
considered a must. From what you said, Mr. Wilgress, with respect to the
present policy I would think that is a totally wrong policy to follow, if I may
say so with great deference. No doubt you are following this policy after
careful consideration of the various factors that enter into such a decision, but
you mentioned that the mechanical distribution, or at least the mechanical
broadcasting technical work in connection with it, is handled by the C.B.C.,
but the preparation of the general policy to be followed in respect of the
material used is a matter for ‘the Department of External Affairs and with
these two things I am in entire agreement. But why in the world should we
separate the C.B.C. international service by putting Jean Désy in Montreal and
then having a commuter service where a man commutes back and forth once
or twice a week to tell him what the Department of External Affairs wants
beamed to other countries is quite beyond me. I think what we should have
is a C.B.C. international service right here in Ottawa and Jean Désy or whoever
is responsible for the material that goes out should be right here in the spot
where consultations can continually go on instead of having some kind of a
remote control of policy such as this where somebody takes a bag of stuff from
Ottawa down by train or plane and then brings it back and that I think would
be a great nuisance with respect to the whole set-up. There must be some
reason for that but certainly that was one of the things that the committee
was most concerned about when they were dealing with this matter a couple
of years ago, and, while some correction has been made by appointing one of
our very able diplomats, Jean Désy, to that post, still, it seems to me you still
separate them from the Department of External Affairs where the policy, in the
final analysis, should be made and should originate and where consultations
on a continuing basis ought to exist.

Mr. GAUTHIER (Portneuf): Is that due to certain technical difficulties?

The WITNESS: As members of the committee are aware, the board of
governors of the C.B.C. located the international service in Montreal. I think
that was largely because the physical facilities were there and that seemed
to be the logical center from a technical standpoint in which to locate this
particular service. The responsibility as to where it should be located lies
with the C.B.C. and I think that was one of the considerations that guided them.

Mr. GraypoN: That brings me back to a point I raised in the House of
Commons which is, who is boss of the international service; because it seems
that in this case, because the C.B.C. needs to have their mechanical equipment
in Montreal—and nobody is going to object to that, that is perhaps the proper
thing to do—but there does not seem any reason why the person responsible
for the preparation of that- material should be in Montreal. Surely it is a
simple matter to have a script of whatever is used taken from Ottawa to



.

EXTERNAL AFFAIRS 49

Montreal instead of having a man in Montreal and having this commuter
service. I think all consultations should take place here, and the mechanical
services could be confined to Montreal.

Mr. CoTE: What is the difference between taking a man from Montreal
down to Ottawa, or a man from Ottawa to Montreal.

Mr. GRAYDON: You have not got the point.

Mr. CoTE: The service is established in Montreal and if Mr. Désy, instead
of being in Montreal, was in Ottawa, he would have to go to Montreal.

Mr. MacInnis: I think Mr. Graydon has raised a very important point,
if the point he has raised is the point I think he has raised, that is, what goes
 over the international service and shortwave broadcasts should be formulated
in the Department of External Affairs.

Hon. MEMBER: It is.

Mr. MacInnis: I think if it were in the hands of the government would
we not be coming close to what we complain of in regard to broadcasts from
the soviet union when nothing goes over except the propaganda which the
soviet government wishes to send over? If our purpose is to give them informa-
tion in regard to Canada, I think that puts a very different complexion on the
question, and such things need not, and perhaps should not be directly under
the direct supervision of the Department of External Affairs. I believe that
the Department of External Affairs should have a general supervision, but I
do not put what goes over on these broadcasts on the same basis as, say, a
speech made by the Minister of External Affairs or the Canadian representa-
tive at the United Nations, or at any gathering as being of the same importance.
I think we should get our minds clear on that.

Mr. GraypoN: The fact that a political coordination section is being insti-
tuted in the department now indicates that the government has the same idea
as I have, that is, that external affairs ought to have some responsibility for
these broadcasts.

Mr. CoLbwWELL: That brings up the point I had in mind earlier. When was
this change from more factual to more psychological broadcasting made?

The WitnEss: I think it has come about gradually. It has come about
gradually with the intensification of the cold war.

Mr. CoLpwEeLL: I was wondering if we could get some examples of the
scripts of these factual and these psychological broadcasts, say, for December
1951 and 1952, then we could see just how that has developed and what psych-
ological warfare means, and how we have changed from the more factual.

» The Wrrness: I shall be glad to bring that request to the attention of Mr.
Désy.

Mr. GrayDON: May I ask, Mr. Wilgress, is there any exchange of scripts
between the B.B.C. international service, the Voice of America and the Cana-
dian international service of the C.B.C.?

The WITNESS: I cannot answer that Mr. Graydon, but Mr. Désy would be
able to. -

Mr. Low: Mr. Wilgress, you said that scripts were sent to officers of the
Department of External Affairs abroad for their reactions and perhaps advice.
Are these sent after they are broadcast or before? 3

The WiTNESS: In some cases it would be before. In the case of a broad-
cast that was not urgent, the script would perhaps be sent for comment abroad
and the comments would be examined. In other cases scripts are sent off for
comment and criticism after the broadcasts have taken place.
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Mr. Furrorp: I would like to ask, Mr. Wilgress,—some months ago there
appeared in a magazine pictures of balloons being released in Munich which
the prevailing winds carried to a certain altitude and at that altitude they would
drop to earth many hundreds of propaganda pamphlets attached to the bal-
loons. The idea of this was to overcome the fact that the air waves were
being jammed by the Russians and with the balloons they would drop propa-
ganda or drop the truth over the satellite nations of, say, Czechoslovakia and
Poland. I presume there is a lot of waste for many of these ballons would
drop over wasteland and never be seen. We do know that in the second world
war the Japanese sent balloons across the Pacific Ocean and some of them

dropped in the ocean, but some were picked up in the interior of North
America.

It strikes me this could be a very valuable way of spreading our gospel
and I was wondering first of all Mr. Chairman, whether Mr. Wilgress has a
report on how effective these—I believe they were experiments—have been,
and, secondly, whether our Canadian Department of External Affairs has ever
considered using this method of getting our propaganda into the satellite
nations and into soviet Russia itsef.

The WiTNESS: I have no information here on that Mr. Fulford, but I will
endeavour to see if we have any information in the department and I could
let the committee know. We have never considered this particular method in
the department largely because our activities in this direction are necessarily
on a modest scale at present.

Mr. FuLrorp: The whole scheme, of course, was to overcome the jamming
of the airwaves by soviet Russia.

Mr. QuELcH: Mr. Wilgress, can you tell me whether the governments behind
the iron curtain have issued definite instructions to the people forbidding
anyone to listen to these broadcasts, or whether it is a question of anyone
being found listening to these broadcasts is placed under suspicion.

The WITNESS: I believe anyone found listening to such broadcasts is subject
to a penalty.

Mr. QueLcH: They are actually forbidden.

The WITNESS: Yes. I understand the only radios on sale in these countries
now are those which will make it difficult to pick up these broadcasts, but
there are some radios there which can pick them up.

Mr. Fraser: I read some weeks ago in one of the New York papers
that four script writers for the Voice of America were dismissed owing to
the fact that they were pro-Russian. What check-up have we on that here?

The WiITNEsS: Naturally the antecedents of all of those engaged in this
work would be investigated.

Mr. FrRASER: They have been or—

The WitneEss: They would be.

Mr. Fraser: This must have been going on in the States for some time
before they were checked up.

Mr. QUELCH: Are all the radios in Europe shortwave receiving sets?

The WiTNEss: That I cannot answer.

Mr. QueLcH: In this country so very few people use the shortwave.

The WITNESS: I am not sure that it is the same in Europe, but is a matter
on which Mr. Désy could give you information.

Mr. McCuskiRr: Can you tell us, Mr. Wilgress, if the Russians are carrying
on some counter-propagands?
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The WITNESS: Yes, of course, Moscow radio is broadcasting constantly.

Mr. McCuUskEeR: Is that being picked up in this country successfully? I
have tried on my own radio many times on a shortwave set to get Russia
and have not succeeded. .

The WirneEss: The Russians naturally are much more interested in the
European audiences and they direct their attention mainly to them.

Mr. McCuskeR: That is the point I was getting at. They have stations as
strong as we have and if we are not more effective in reaching them than they
are in reaching us are we not wasting considerable time?

- Mr. Low: You could pick up Russian broadcasts almost anytime on the
Canadian shortwave.

Mr. McCusker: That may be so in Peace River.

Mr. Low: No, right here in Ottawa.

Mr. GRAYDON: When a script is prepared and before it is broadcast to
another country, such as Czechoslavakia or the Ukraine or the like, is there
any censorship or any approval given to that before that script is broadcast,
and, if so, who has the final say as to whether it should go or should not, or
whether it should be changed.

The WITNEsS: Ultimately that is the responsibility of the C.B.C.I.S. Broad-
casts are not censored, but if the director-general had any doubt about a
script he would send it up to the department for comment.

Mr. Low: If there was any doubt of it being within the policy agreed upon?

The WiTNESs: Yes. All we do in the department is give political guidance.
That is what we consider to be our responsibility and we consider that our
responsibility ends there, and the actual broadcast and the preparation of scripts
is the responsibility of the C.B.C.I.S. which is under the C.B.C. itself.

Mr. GrRaypon: I know you are not in the final analysis responsible for this
policy and I do not want to be critical of you. But I think the division of the
authority, the division of direction, and the division of approval with respect
to these international broadcasts leaves very much to be desired, and I think
the government ought to give consideration right away to making sure there
is one boss and one final person who is responsible for the international service
broadcasts. As it is now it is certainly very confused. We have evidence before
the committee that the C.B.C.I.S. is serving two masters and if there is any
one thing in which you should not be serving two masters, it should be in
what we are sending to other parts of the world.

Mr. GAuTHIER: (Portneuf): Technically, it is serving one master, and
politically serving another master. It cannot be otherwise.

Mr. GRAYDON: That is not what the evidence was.

Mr. GAauTHIER (Portneuf): You have to look at the technical side.

Mr. Cote: Concerning that point raised by Mr. Graydon, is that not a
denial of the C.B.C. itself, in the government or any department of the
government took over the control of the C.B.C.?

The CHAIRMAN: I believe the qﬁaliﬁcation would be better advisors than
masters in cases of this kind.

Mr. GRAYDON: Somebody has to have a say and I do not think an adviser
has any say. I think an adviser is only to advise somebody who has the say.

Mr. CoLpwELL: Does not the Director General have the final say in the
event of any difficulty arising?

The WitnEss: The Director General is the responsible official in this
matter.
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Mr. GrRAYDON: And the Director General is under the direction of the
Department of National Revenue.

The WITNESS: I may say the set-up we have in Canada is very similar to
that in the United Kingdom.

Mr. MacDoucALL: Mr. Chairman, I do not like to be critical, particularly
in a grammatical way, but I am wondering whether or not it is advisable for
this committee, and the government, and Mr. Désy to refer to these broadcasts
that are beamed behind the iron curtain as political broadcasts. Could we not
substitute some word other than ‘political’, because I do not think Mr. Graydon
or any of the other members of the opposition who are members of this com-
mittee would take offence at this, but it just might be possible that a lot of
people would be likely to interpret this term as the view of one party in the
house, and I think it would be well to consider the possibility of substituting
another term for ‘political’, particularly when we are in this committee a group
of members of all the various parties in the house.

Mr. CoLbwELL: Isn’t Mr. MacDougall taking a very narrow definition of
the word? Partisan is what he is thinking of.

Mr. MacDougaLL: Well, it is still political in the minds of a lot of ‘people.

Mr. CoLpWELL: Partisan is what you are thinking of.

Mr. MacDouGALL: No, I am thinking of political. The word ‘political’ is an
accepted term with 90 per cent of the people of Canada. I am not taking the
dictionary definition of it at all, and I am thinking it would be quite easy to
substitute some other word for ‘political’.

Mr. Frasgr: Call it propaganda.

Mr. FuLrorp: That is a bad word!

Mr. MacDouGALL: Definitely not. The word ‘propaganda’ was used this
morning, which I objected to. .

Mr. FuLrForD: Democratic?

Mr. McCuskeR: Call it educational.

The CHAIRMAN: As Mr. Wilgress has already stated, Mr. Désy will be at
our disposal to answer a lot of these questions. I think we have had a very
fruitful discussion on the statement made by Mr. Wilgress already. Can we
proceed now? %

Mr. Low: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Wilgress asked us for some suggestion as to
the time when it would be convenient to have Mr. Désy come before us, and
I think we ought. to give him an answer to that.

The CHAIRMAN: I believe Mr. Decore, a member of our.committee, is quite
interested in this. He came to my office this morning and said he would be
away for a week. As I said, he is extremely interested in the question. Could
we set a tentative date at two weeks from now? Would that be satisfactory for
Mr. Désy, Mr. Wilgress?

Mr. MacINNIS: Why not leave it to the steering committee?

The CHAIRMAN: But in a general way, would not two weeks be all right?

Mr. GAUuTHIER (Portneuf): Can we not ask any more questions?

The CHAIRMAN: Oh, yes.

By Mr. Gauthier (Portneuf):

Q. Suppose that you are broadcasting a program behind the iron curtain,
and suppose you are sending something of interest especially to Czechoslovakia.
Haveé you got a Czechoslovak broadcaster for that? I suppose you have many
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different nationalities on the staff?—A. The C.B.C.I.S. have language sections,
that is, a section for each language, and employees of these sections can speak
the particular language involved.

Q. Psychologically it is very important.—A. Yes.

Mr. FULFORD: Are they born in those countries? I think that is very
important.

The WITNESS: That is a question you should direct to Mr. Désy.

Mr. GRAYDON: Can I ask one final question?

Mr. MacDoucGAaLL: You have asked too many now.

By Mr. Graydon:

Q. I just wanted to know this. . Mr. Désy is called the Director General, if
I understand it correctly, of the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation Inter-
national Service. Now, I hope that I will not be misunderstood when I mention
this, because I know there is no thought in anybody’s mind about Mr. Désy
being relieved of his position, but supposing a Director General is not giving
satisfaction, what minister of the cabinet can remove him? The Department
of External Affairs Minister or the Minister of National Revenue? In other
words, who is the boss?—A. The C.B.C. would be the boss in that case. The
C.B.C., as you know, reports to parliament through Dr. McCann.

Q. So, really the report to parliament would not come through External
Affairs at all, it would come through the Minister of National Revenue?—
A. On a matter of administration, through the Minister of National Revenue.

Mr. CoLbwELL: I suppose advice on such a step as that would be given
by the Department of External Affairs to the Canadian- Broadcasting Cor-
poration.

The WiTNESS: Naturally.

Mr. GRayDON: Or it could be given by the Prime Minister.

Mr. Low: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Wilgress did not mention the name of the
official of their department who goes back and forth to Montreal.

The WiTNESS: Mr. Beaulne.

Mr. McCuskeR: Is a tape recording kept of each broadcast, so that we
could check to see if the actual broadcast corresponds identically with the
seript?

The WiTNES: I cannot answer that, Mr. McCusker; Mr. Désy could
probably answer that.

By Mr. Bater:

Q. Mr. Chairman, Mr. Wilgress stated that in connection with this service
there was co-operation between the Department of External Affairs, the
Department of Citizenship and Immigration, the Department of Trade and
Commerce, and also the Exhibition Commission. Might I ask what is the
function of the Exhibition Commission?—A. The committee I mentioned as
effecting this co-operation is an interdepartmental committee on Canadian
information abroad; that is, it is a committee dealing with the particular
question of making Canada better known in the world, and, of course, the
Exhibition Commission is a very important agent for making Canada known
abroad. The Exhibition Commission has to do with the mechanics of Canadian
exhibitions abroad, and the advice of its officers is very valuable on this inter-
departmental committee. The interdepartmental committee is a body set up
to give advice to the government on the best means of projecting Canada
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abroad. Of course, the C.B.C.-1.S. is one of the agencies which does this and
part of its activities are concerned with broadcasts behind the iron curtain,
but. that is not all. The C.B.C.-I.S. broadcasts to Latin America, to Australia
and New Zealand, and to western Europe. Only a small part of its services deals
with broadcasts behind the iron curtain.

Q. The personnel is made up of officials of the different departments?—
A. The chairman is the head of the information division of the Department
of External Affairs, and the members are officials of the Department of Trade
and Commerce, the Department of Citizenship and Immigration, the National
Film Board, the Bank of Canada, the Exhibition Commission, and the
CB.EC.-LS.

Mr. CotE: I would like to ask a question dealing with the cultural end
of these Canadian exhibitions. What is the body represented on that inter-
departmental committee that is concerned with the cultural aspects?

The WiTNESS: They would naturally consult with the various voluntary
agencies in Canada dealing with the arts, and the National Gallery and other
agencies, regarding the cultural side of projecting Canada abroad. A good
illustration, I think, is the National Film Board, which consults with the
various agencies on their particular work. This committee would seek the
advice of non-governmental societies and organizations and also the National
Gallery on the cultural side. Our information division is in constant and
close touch with such organizations.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. I notice you have no representatives of the Department of Labour or
the Department of Agriculture on that committee.—A. No.

Q. The Departments of Labour and Agriculture might have, I think, some
contributions to make.

By Mr. Fraser:

Q. In regard to these broadcasts, are they altogether just speaking or
do they give music with them, and entertainment? Or is it just straight talk?
—A. No, entertainment is not forgotten. Very often, for example, to illustrate
Canadian interest in music, musical programs are included; descriptions of
sports and other Canadian activities are broadcast. Mr. Désy considers it very
important, I think, that the entertainment side of these broadcasts should not
be forgotten.

Q. The way I look at it, Mr. Chairman, is that I myself would not listen to
speeches being broadcast continually. My friend to my right brought it up,
but we would not listen to it continually all day long, we would want something
inserted in between the talks to pep up the program.

Mr. CoLpwEeLL: I venture that Mr. Désy would not neglect the cultural
side of these broadcasts. I do not think it would be neglected as far as Mr.
Désy is concerned.

Mr. FuLrorp: I have never heard any broadcasts beamed to the Soviet
Union, but I did hear some of the broadcasts beamed to South America, and I
consider them very good programs, they were fairly well interspersed with
music and speeches and descriptions of Canada. I was very pleased with them.

Mr. GraYDON: Were they in Spanish?

Mr. FuLrorp: The two I heard were in English, but I was told there were
Spanish broadcasts of a similar nature.

The WITNESS: Broadcasts to South America are in four languages: English,
French, Spanish and Portugese.
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Mr. GRAYDON: Before we bring Mr. Désy, I would think Mr. Wilgress
should find out if it is possible to make available to us some translations of
some of these broadcasts to behind the iron curtain. I think the committee
ought to have them in order to get an idea of what is being done.

Mr. GAUuTHIER (Portneuf): I second that.

The WriTnEss: I would prefer that that be left till Mr. Désy appears before
you.

The CHAIRMAN: And in the meantime Mr. MacDougall might make an
analysis of the psychological effect of the broadcasts.

Mr. MacDoucALL: I have made my analysis, Mr. Chairman.
The CHAIRMAN: Shall we proceed?

The WiTnEss: I have an answer to another question which was asked at a
previous meeting. Mr. Graydon asked at our last meeting if we could give a
percentage or proportion of our heads of missions who were career officers and
those who were non-career officers. I find that of 43 ambassadors, high commis-
sioners, ministers, chargés d’affaires, consuls-general, and consuls who are now
in charge of Canadian posts abroad, 18 were appointed from outside the depart-
ment and 25 had previous service with us. That is about 42 per cent were
appointed from outside the department.

The ambassadors form the largest group. There are 20 of them, and of those
twemnty, ten—or exactly half—were appointed from outside the department.

Now, it may interest members of the committee if I break these figures
down further among the various categories. Of our high commissioners, five
had previous service in the department and one was appointed from outside;
of our permanent representatives, there are two and both were from the
Department of External Affairs; of ministers, three were appointed from the
Department of External Affairs and one from outside the department; of the
consuls-general, two were appointed from the Department of External Affairs
and three from outside the department; of chargés d’affaires there are three,
and they were all from the department; of the consuls, there are three, and
they were from outside the department.

One can make a further subdivision of those from outside the department
by enumerating those who were appointed from some other branch of the
public service and those who were not. For instance, of the ten ambassadors
who were appointed from outside the department, five were appointed from
some other branch of the public service and five were from outside the public
service; of the high commissioners the one from outside the department was
appeointed from another branch of the public service; the minister appointed
from outside the department was not previously in the public service; of the
consuls-general, there were three from outside the department—two were from
some other branch of the public service and one from outside; and the three
consuls who are heads of posts were all from another branch of the public service.

Mr. RicHARD: In fact, there were very few who were not in the public
service before their appointment.

The WiTNESS: Seven altogether.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. What were the professions of the people who were appointed from
outside the public service—professions or trades—of those who were appointed
from outside the public service.—A. I can mention some of them. One was a
chartered accountant; one was a newspaper man; one, I think, was engaged
in the tourist trade; one was an educationalist; one had, I believe, an adver-
tising business.

71687—2
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Q. No lawyers?—A. Another was a manufacturer. I am afraid I do not
know the occupation of the seventh, but there are no lawyers among those
appointed from outside the department. Of course there are lawyers in the
department and a number of our heads of missions were lawyers.

Mr. BATER: No farmers?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, a lot of farmers’ sons.

The WiITNESS: The minister in Oslo, Norway, as I mentioned at the last
meeting, has a farm in Peel County.

Mr. GAUuTHIER (Portneuf): No medical men?

The WiTNEsS: I cannot see a medical man here.

Well, Mr. Chairman, if I may I shall go on to deal with another question
that was raised at the last meeting. I promised Mr. Green to make a statement
concerning the persons trained in Canada under the Colombo and other plans

In response to questions about numbers of people who have come to
Canada for technical training ‘under the Colombo Plan under the auspices
the United Nations and its Specialized Agencies, two tables have been
prepared. You might wish to have them printed in the record of the meeting.

These tables show, first by fields of study and secondly by countries of
origin, the numbers of persons trained in Canada through the Technical
Cooperation Service which is a division of the Department of Trade and
Commerce. The total is 243 and the list of subjects studied is a long® one
running from animal husbandry to town: planning, while the areas of origin
extend from Antigua to Yugoslavia. It is interesting to note that the principal
fields of study have been engineering with 46, public administration with 29,
railways with 18 and education with 17. The main sending countries have
been India with 66, Pakistan with 53, Korea and Finland with 10 each and
Ceylon with 9. Of the total, 99 have come to Canada under the ausplces of the
Colombo Plan.

I should add that insofar as the United Nations and its Specialized
Agencies are concerned, these lists are not complete since they show only
trainees who have been dealt with through the Technical Cooperation Service.
Some of the Specialized Agencies have sent trainees to Canada independently
and we do not have accurate figures about them. For example, we know that
training programmes in social welfare work were arranged for some 25
persons by the Department of National Health and Welfare. We also know
that approximately 60 Canada-UNESCO fellowships were awarded by the
Canadian Council for Reconstruction through UNESCO to nationals of 14
war-damaged countries. °

Altogether it seems probable that the number of people sent to Canada
by the United Nations and its Specialized Agencies would amount to about 260
which with the 99 Colombo plan trainees brings the total to something like 360.

It may interest the committee to know that there has been an increasing
tendency under the Colombo Plan towards emphasis on training in Canada
as part of a large scale project. For example, arrangements are being com-
pleted for a number of technicians to be trained in Canada in photo-survey
work in connection with the aerial survey being carried out for Pakistan.
Similarly, arrangements are being made to train Pakistanis in cement making
in connection with the cement plant to be supplied to that country.

In administering the Colombo programme, it is now the tendency to place
more emphasis on training in the area rather than in Canada. Highly
qualified candidates have been nominated to meet all requests outstanding
for technical experts to provide training in the area. The Technical Coopera-
tion Service now have a roster of about 50 people selected from more than 200
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who have volunteered for work as instructors under the Colombo Plan. The
director of the Bureau for Technical Cooperation in Ceylon and our representa-
tives in South Asia are endeavouring to stimulate requests in this field.

That is, we feel that more good will come of it if a Canadian expert goes
out to one of these countries to train a large number of people in a particular
vocation, than if we go to the expense of bringing people to Canada. The
emphasis is now tending to be more in that direction.

Mr. GrRAYDON: In certain cases you would have to bring them here to see
what is being done in certain industries and certain lines of business. I have
in mind a dietitian who came from India and visited the parliamentary
restaurant and other places to see what was being done.

Hon. MEMBER: They should have sent him to a mining camp.

Mr. GraypoN: I figure that the government would want to bring them
here, I suppose in cases of that kind. They still have to have some system
whereby these trainees would have to be brought here, but I suppose on the
general policy it is much less expensive to train them over there than here.
: The WiTNESS: You are quite right, Mr. Graydon. In many cases the
trainee has to be brought here because it would be difficult to provide training
in his country. That is, there would not be the facilities with which to give
him the same training he would receive here. But it is not very economical
in many instances to bring one man here and train him because when he goes
back he will probably be so engaged in the work he has learned that he will
not have the time to train others, whereas if a Canadian expert goes to a
country he can conduct courses and train hundreds of people. And of course
we can only bring a limited number of people to Canada. So, it is more
economical to emphasize the other approach, and that is being done. The
emphasis is now more on sending our experts abroad but it does take a litte
organization.

Mr. GREEN: I am very grateful, Mr. Wilgress, for that information. I
think you mentioned there were some men coming here from south Korea,
and it might be helpful to the committee if you could give us a rough outline
of the part Canada is taking in helping to rehabilitate south Koreans. I ask
that because I was reading in the current issue of the U.S. News and World
Report interview in which the Minister of Foreign Affairs for south Korea Mr.
Pyun said that the plans for rehabilitating south Koreans were not working out
very well at all. It was quite a disturbing interview and he said that the
transportation of supplies and so on was under military confrol in south
Korea, and as a result of this other things took second place. Military needs
always come first and I am just wondering what part Canada is taking in that
rehabilitation because it seems very important to me that south Koreans
should receive special assistance. :

The WiTnEss: South Korea is receiving special assistance, but it is done
through a United Nations agency, that is the United Nations Korean Recon-
struction Agency. - (UNKRA) which was set up by the general assembly in
1950 to “plan and supervise rehabilitation and relief” in Korea. The govern-
ment of Canada contributed $7,250,000 ,(Canadian) to the work of this agency
in 1951 and is at the present time the second largest contributor. The United
States has so far contributed $10 million (U.S.) as a first instalment on a
pledge of $162,500,000. The United Kingdom has approved a contribution of
$28 million (U.S.) of which $700,000 (U.S.) has been paid. Other govern-
ment contributions paid in total approximately $400,000 (U.S.). In addition
the agency has received from governments contributions in kind worth
approximately $600.000 (U.S.). It has acted as channel for other contributions
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in kind to the emergency relief programme received from non-governmental
organizations. e.g., the United Church of Canada, Canadian Lutheran World
Relief and the Salvation Army of Canada.

Canada is a member of the advisory committee of UNKRA which also

includes the United Kingdom, the United States, India and Uruguay. The

principal function of this committee is to advise the agent general with regard
to major financial, procurement, distribution and other economic problems
relating to the agency’s plans and operations. At the present time the
Canadian representative is also the chairman of the advisory committee.

Because of the prolongation of the cease-fire talks, UNKRA has not yet
been able to commence large-scale operations. Present relief work is under-
taken by the unified command through its Civil Assistance Command
(UNCACK). UNKRA, in the meantime, is engaged in undertaking field
studies, hiring staff and making the necessary arrangements to go into effect
when it assumes full responsibility for all rehabilitation work when conditions
in Korea permit this. The advisory committee at its meeting in New York
on November 24, 1952, approved the agency’s $70 million programme of relief
and rehabilitation provided the agent general of UNKRA is able to obtain full
co-operation from the Korean authorities in implementing the various parts
of the programme. The principal items to be undertaken under the programme
are: The development of projects in the fields of agricultural research, irri-
gation and land reclamation, rehabilitation of damaged industrial plants,
increase in electric power capacity, restoration of port facilities and railroads,
development of Korean coal field for local needs, initiation of a Korean housing
programme and restoring schools and libraries.

The agent general of UNKRA in implementing the approved programme'

will consult with the unified command to ensure that none of the suggested
activities under the programme will conflict with the prevailing military
situation in Korea. i

So you will see that the agency is dealing mostly with the long-term
projects and immediate relief is being undertaken by the unified command
under its Civil Assistance Command.

Mr. GREEN: I take it the statement of the south Korean foreign minister
is correct. That the military authorities are the only ones doing anything.
How long would it be before the United Nations step into the field, for it
does seem to me it is very important that we should get the work done as
quickly as possible.

The WiTNESS: They are working, of course, on these.long-term rehabili-
tation projects. They have quite a large staff in Korea and they are doing
what they can. They have also acted as agents for turning over relief supplies
to the Civil Assistance Command who would do the actual distribution in
Korea.

Mr. GREEN: Would the scheme be broad enough to help south Korean
veterans who have been discharged from the army to become rehabilitated.
I am referring to many of them who were wounded and there is no provision
for helping them at the present time. Is this scheme wide enough to assist
work of that kind.

The WriTNESS: I should think it would be broad enough to assist in a
scheme of that type, its terms of reference are the rehabilitation of south
Korea.

Mr. GRAYDON: May I ask you, Mr. Wilgress, if you can help me on this?
In the returns brought down the other day in the House the member for
Nanaimo asked a question about this very matter and had the answer given
by the Minsiter of National Defence that something over $7 million had been
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given to the appropriate United Nations fund. I was unable to find where
that vote was. I could not locate it in the accounts, and I was wondering if
that could be located.

The Witness: That was in 1951.

Mr. GRAYDON: Was it made in one bulk payment.

The WiTnEss: Yes, that was $7,250,000. The agency was having difficulty
in getting going and had an urgent requirement for funds, and other govern-
ments for constitutional or parliamentary reasons could not provide the money
quickly, so we stepped in and it was possible for us to provide our contribu-
tion and in effect we really got the agency going with this $7,250,000.

Mr. GRAYDON: Was that supplementary estimates or regular estimates for
19507

Mr. MACDONNELL (Dept. of External Affairs): It was supplementary
estimates.

Mr. FRASER: In regard to experts sent over to these countries, how do you
handle them. What, I mean is, do you give them a term of years to be there
and what arrangements are made after for their return to Canada.

The WiTNESS: They are engaged for whatever time is required to accom-
plish their work. I can give you some examples.

Mr. FrRaser: That is what I would like to have. I want those who went
from here over there and have been taken out of their industry here on loan
to your department.

The WiTnEss: I think perhaps it will answer your question if I give you
some information about the experts who have been offered to south Asian
countries in the programme under the Colombo plan.

For instance, an officer of a fishing concern in British Columbia has served
as commercial fisheries consultant to the government of Ceylon. I do not
know the period for which he was appointed, but he has been there for the
last 18 months.

An officer of the Commonwealth Biological Institute last year went on a
three-month mission to India and Pakistan to investigate the possibility of
setting up Commonwealth Biological Institutes in these countries. As a result
of his survey India and Pakistan made an application for assistance under the
Colombo plan for setting up Commonwealth Biological stations. Action is now
being taken to establish these stations and it is anticipated that he will be
returning to the sub-continent to serve as director for the stations in both
countries. It will be a contract for a term of years and he will be brought
back after he has fulfilled his task.

Similarly, a professor of agriculture at the Ontario Agricultural College
is serving in Ceylon for a period of three years as head of the Department of
Agriculture of the University of Ceylon at Peridenia.

A professor of the Soils Department of the University of Alberta has been
lent to Ceylon for a period of one year as director of a soils division of the
government of Ceylon. k

Then, fishing captains have recently left for Ceylon where they will direct
the instructional work carried on by the fishing boats “Canadian” and “North
Star” under the pilot plant fisheries project.

Similarly a refrigeration expert has been in Ceylon for eighteen months
in connection with the same fisheries project.

An agricultural and cooperative mission consisting of four experts has
been sent to India, Pakistan and Ceylon for a period of three months to investi-
gate what further technical assistance we can give in the agricultural and
cooperative fields.
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I mention these simply as illustrations because I have not got the full
details with me this morning.

. Mr. FRASER: What I want to find out is: they are taken out of organiza-
tions and industries like refrigeration and they are sent over there, but under
our plan here we are helping them over there to manufacture, on the ground,
refrigeration—are we?

The WiTnEss: Not manufacture exactly. What you mean is setting up
refrigeration plants which these countries can use.

Mr. FRASER: Yes.

The WiTness: This was in connection with the fisheries project and of
course training in refrigeration technique is very necessary to show them how
to operate the plants.

Mr. FrRASER: You have tractor experts to show them how to run a
~tractor, you have men qualified for that purpose?

The WiITNESS: Yes, there have been tractor experts. That was a United
Nations project.

Mr. CoLDWELL: Are we sending model boats to Ceylon?

The WITNESS: Yes, these Canadian fishing boats the “Canadian” and
“North Star” under the pilot plant fisheries project.

Mr. BaTER: Isn’t Professor Hardy over there in connection with that
agricultural engineering from the University of Saskatchewan?

The WITNESS: I do not see his name here, but this is not a complete list.
Mr. FRASER: When these men are loaned for work over there, does the
department here pay their salaries and expenses.

The WITNESS: The administration of the Colombo plan is dealt with by
the Department of Trade and Commerce, so the Technical Cooperation Service
of the Department of Trade and Commerce would pay their salaries and
expenses and it would come out of the Department of External Affairs vote
for the Colombo plan—the technical assistance part of it.

Mr. FrRaSER: And arrangements are made for their return to Canada and
into their own positions again.

The WITNESS: Yes.

Mr. GRaYDON: I suppose it would not be possible for Mr. Cavell to be back
in time to give evidence before the committee? How long will he be? ?

The WiTNESS: He left on the 19th and I think he is due back sometlme 1n
*April.

The CHAIRMAN: It may be possible to have him then.

Mr. CoLbwELL: He gave some excellent evidence last year.

Mr. GraypoN: If it would be possible at all to have Mr. Cavell come before
us, it would be very helpful.

The CHAIRMAN: Is it agreed that the tables mentioned by Mr. Wilgress be
inserted in our record as an appendix?

Agreed.
There are no more statements to make. Is there any more questioning?

Mr. QUELCH: When we send men to the different countries where there is
a degree of political unrest, does the government or the United Nations provide
any form of insurance, or is that left for the individual to cover himself?
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The WriTnNESS: There is no special provision now, but we are investigating
the possibility of providing insurance. ;

The CHAIRMAN: Do I hear a motion that we adjourn?

Agreed.

Is it agreed that we should come back on Monday, March 2, at 11 o’clock?

Agreed.
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APPENDIX “A"
PERSONS TRAINED IN CANADA THROUGH THE TECHNICAL CO-OPERATION SERVICE UNDER THE AUSPICES OF THE
COLOMBO PLAN, UNITED NATIONS AND SPECIALIZED AGENCIES
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PERSONS TRAINED IN CANADA, THROUGH THE TECHNICAL CO-OPERATION
SERVICE UNDER THE AUSPICES OF THE COLOMBO PLAN, ;
UNITED NATIONS AND SPECIALIZE